
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS ALSO

WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH WILL BE HELD AT THE GILA COUNTY MAINTENANCE YARD, 5320 E.

HIGHWAY 260, MILE POST 257, STAR VALLEY, ARIZONA.  THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, December 14, 2010 - 10 A.M.

               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Introduction of Arizona State Senator Sylvia Allen to provide information and discuss Gila

County issues in preparation for the upcoming Arizona Legislative Session.  (Don McDaniel)

 

 

B Recognition of 4 employees for November's "Spotlight on Employees" Program. (Juley

Bocardo-Homan)

 

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A (Motion to convene as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.) 

Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to consider the floodplain variance request

submitted by Roy and Rose Goodwin for Parcel 201-14-018C in Tonto Basin, and to direct the

Floodplain Administrator to record to deed that the property is not in compliance with the Gila

County Floodplain Management Ordinance, and that the 24' x 60' manufactured home, VIN

number CAFL2A/B849091498, is required to be brought into full compliance upon transfer of

ownership of the property.  An Affidavit of Correction of the Floodplain Ordinance Violation

can be recorded if the property is brought into compliance.  (Steve Sanders/Darde

deRoulhac) 

(Motion to reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 10-12 proclaiming December 2010

as Drunk and Drugged Driving (3D) Prevention Month in Gila County.  (Lorraine

Dalrymple)

 

 

B Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction for the sale of real property deeded to the

State of Arizona by Treasurer's Deed in the year 2010, as follows:  101-07-057; 101-07-175;

101-07-227; 101-10-030-A; 102-26-001-B; 201-08-054-B; 207-15-506;

304-01-362-H; 304-01-362-J and 305-10-022-D.  (Mike Pastor/Marian Sheppard)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Call for Bids No. 111510-1 to

provide all advertising, publications and printing required to be done or made by all

departments of Gila County for calendar year 2011; award to the lowest, responsible and

qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the contract for the winning

bidder.   (Marian Sheppard)

 

 



D Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-11-01 establishing guidelines for

the selection of the Gila County Redistricting Committee.  (Linda Eastlick)

 

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to certify the Proposition 112 recount results from the General

Election held on November 2, 2010.   (Linda Eastlick)

 

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract No.

6511.526/10-2010 between Gila County and C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc. whereby

consulting services will be provided for the Tonto Creek Bridge Project in the amount of

$119,000.00 from December 14, 2010, to October 31, 2011.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-21-01 and to authorize the

submission of a SFY 2011 LTAF II Grant Application to the Arizona Department of

Transportation (ADOT) to assist in eligible transit-related projects that are qualified

under ADOT guidelines in the amount of $21,598.48 with a County match of $5,399.62. (Steve

Stratton)

 

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to approve a vehicle transfer of a 2004 Dodge Intrepid (Vin

#283HD46V54H702769) from the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Miami Police

Department.  (John Armer/Claudia DalMolin)

 

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Interlock Agreement between the Gila County

Sheriff's Office and the Town of Payson (a disparate community) for the 2010 Byrne Justice

Assistance Grant Program Award in the amount $10,361.  (John Armer/Claudia DalMolin)

 

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No.

080310-1 for the purchase of the General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support

System; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's

signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder.  (Debi Savage)

 

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Agreement No.

1005.203/12-2010 between Gila County and Robert Heming whereby the Consultant will

provide for the conversion from DSA to the new Tyler System in the amount of $5,000.00 for

the period December 14, 2010, to December 14, 2011.  ( Debi Savage)

 

 

L Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Amendment (Phase II) to the Office Workflow

Automation and System Integration Contract No. 3528-301-102007 dated December 18, 2007,

between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Ashley Brandon Company for

enhancements to the Verdict System (Phase I) in the amount of $60,820.   (Bryan Chambers)

 

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01, a grant award

between the Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Sheriff's

Office in the amount of $38,500 for the Automatic License Plate Reader Program. 

 

 

B Approval of Sub-Grantee Agreement No. 10-ADOS-HS GP-777305-02, a grant

award between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona Department of Homeland

Security in the amount of $28,000 for the target hardening of dams, waterways/infrastructure

of Gila County for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011. 

 

 



 

C Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Independent Contractor Agreement No. ACAA07012010

between the Gila County Community Services Division, Housing Section, and the Arizona

Community Action Association to allocate additional Utility, Repair, Replacement, and

Deposit (URRD) funds in the amount of $81,459.89 to continue providing service to eligible

Gila County residents for the period July 01, 2010, through June 30, 2011.

 

 

D Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/Contract for

Help America Vote Act (HAVA) between Gila County and the Arizona Secretary of State to

change the termination date of the contract from Federal Fiscal Year 2010 to Federal Fiscal

Year 2016. 

 

 

E Approval of the reappointment of members to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a

four-year term from January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014, as follows:  District One: 

Randy Slapnicka; District Two:  Lori Brown, Jay Spehar and Travis Williams; and District

Three:  Mickie Nye and Jack Larimore.

 

 

F Approval to reappoint Patty Stallings Hetrick to the Highway 60-70 Regional Design Review

Board for an additional four-year term for the period January 1, 2011, through December 31,

2014.

 

 

G Approval of the reappointment of members to the Gila County Board of Adjustment for a

four-year term from January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014, as follows:  District Two: 

Lori Brown and Travis Williams; and District Three:  John (Jack) Larimore.

 

 

H Approval to appoint Supervisor Michael Pastor as the Gila County representative on the

Central Arizona Association of Governments Region V Council of Governments for the

calendar year 2011.

 

 

I Acknowledgement of the resignation of Ms. Ardith Hogan from the East Verde Park Fire

District governing board and the appointment of Mr. Bobbie L. Pierce to complete the term of

Ms. Hogan, which expires 12/31/2012, and acknowledgement of the death of East Verde Park

Fire District governing board member Jim Cambier and the appointment of Mr. Dan Haapala

to complete the term of Mr. Cambier, which expires 12/31/2012.

 

 

J Approval of the June 22, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.  
 

K Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe

Regional Constable.

 

 

L Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the

Recorder's Office.

 

 

M Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 7, 2010, and December 14, 2010.  
 

N Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of December 7, 2010, and

December 14, 2010.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow individuals  



6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow individuals

to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board members may not discuss items that

are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute

§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to

study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and

decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of

Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No

action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO
ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR
TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S
ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk

Submitted By: Janice Cook, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager

Presenter's Name: John F. Nelson 

Information

Request/Subject

Senator Sylvia Allen visit to Gila County on December 14 2010.

Background Information

The County Supervisors Association has facilitated a visit to Gila County on December 14, 2010, by

Senator Sylvia Allen and Representatives-elect Brenda Barton and Chester Crandall.  The legislators

will tour the Sheriff's detention/jail facility in Payson and then attend the regular Board of Supervisors'

meeting.  (Update:  Representatives-elect Brenda Barton and Chester Crandall will be unable to attend.)

Evaluation

 N/A

Conclusion

N/A 

Recommendation

N/A 

Suggested Motion

Introduction of Arizona State Senator Sylvia Allen to provide information and discuss Gila County

issues in preparation for the upcoming Arizona Legislative Session.  (Don McDaniel)



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Personnel Director

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Personnel

Presenter's Name: Juley Bocardo-Homan 

Information

Request/Subject

Monthly recognition of county employees

Background Information

Purpose is to provide recognition for the following qualities: team work, quality, morale building, integrity,

customer service and initiative.

Evaluation

N/A

Conclusion

N/A

Recommendation

N/A

Suggested Motion

Recognition of 4 employees for November's "Spotlight on Employees" Program. (Juley Bocardo-Homan)



    Public Hearing   Item #:  3- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Floodplain

Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders/Darde

deRoulhac 

Information

Request/Subject

Variance Request to the Gila County Floodplain Ordinance for Parcel No. 201-14-018C.

Background Information

Roy Goodwin acquired a used 24' x 60' manufactured home from his next door neighbors, Roger and

Francie Phillips (Parcel 201-14-017) who upgraded their manufactured home. The Goodwins installed

the manufactured home as replacement for an older home, without obtaining a floodplain use permit or a

building permit. The Goodwins are now asking for a variance from the floodplain regulations, including

the requirement to elevate the structure to the regulatory flood elevation.  There is an older mobile home

with additions on the parcel as well, which should not be part of the variance request.

Evaluation

A. FINDINGS OF FACT:

The variance applicants, Roy and Rose Goodwin,

1. Have replaced a manufactured home on parcel number 201-14-018C in the Rancho Escondido

subdivision in Tonto Basin.

2. Obtained the used replacement manufactured home, stated to be a 24' x 60' 1989 Barrington

manufactured home (1979 according to Assessor's Office), VIN Number CAFL2A/B849091498, from

their neighbors, the Phillips', who own parcel number 201-14-017. The Phillips' built piers to elevate

their new home after being denied a variance to place it below the flood elevation on October 13, 2009.

3. Were sent a standard Flood Hazard Determination Form by Gila County Community Development

Division on December 10, 2009. This form stated the base flood elevation.

4. Did not obtain a floodplain use permit or a building permit to install the replacement home as required

by the Floodplain Ordinance and by FEMA regulations.

5. Installed the replacement manufactured home below the regulatory flood elevation. Replacement

manufactured homes are required to meet the current elevation requirement, which is that the bottom of

the lowest structural member is to be elevated to at least the regulatory flood elevation, even though they

appear to have replaced a home which had been installed prior to the initial adoption of the Gila County

Floodplain Management Ordinance in 1986, and therefore was not required to be elevated above the

flood elevation at that time.

6. Are located in a neighborhood which was inundated during the floods of January, 2010. The other

home on the parcel, an older 8' x 45' mobile home with the additions appears to have been flooded in



home on the parcel, an older 8' x 45' mobile home with the additions appears to have been flooded in

January. Based on available evidence, the average flood depth on this parcel in January appears to have

been about 1.5 feet.

7. Reference the elevation of his brother's house next door, built without being on piers, as a reason not

to elevate, and state that the brother was not required to elevate his home when installed in 2001. The

permitted elevation for the brother's home was based on an older (now superseded) FEMA study. An

elevation was required for the brother's home, but no certification was supplied to verify that the home

was sufficiently elevated. The current, more detailed FEMA flood study, which became effective in

2007, also shows a 1.8-ft higher flood elevation. Roy and Rose Goodwin's home is placed 4.8 ft below

the regulatory flood elevation.

8. Have received assistance from the County CAP program for rehab on the manufactured home.

9. Have been in contact with the Gila County Division of Emergency Management about becoming

involved in a FEMA grant program to elevate the manufactured home to comply with the elevation

requirement.

10. Have requested a variance based on two personal reasons, a handicap which confines Mr. Goodwin

to a wheelchair, and the cost to bring the home into compliance.

B. NATURE OF VARIANCE REQUEST:

Section 6.1 of the Gila County Floodplain Management Ordinance requires that

“variances pertain to a piece of property and are not personal in nature. A variance may be granted for a

parcel of property with physical characteristics so unusual that complying with the requirements of this

ordinance would create an exceptional hardship to the applicant or surrounding property owners. The

characteristics must be unique to the property and not be shared by adjacent parcels. The unique

characteristic must pertain to the land itself, not to the structure, its inhabitants, or the property owners...”

The physical characteristics of this parcel are extremely similar to those of the adjacent parcel,

201-14-017, for which the Phillips were denied a variance by the Board on October 13, 2009. Both are

relatively flat land and are close to the Tonto Creek channel (see aerial photo in Exhibit B). In the

January 2010 flood, both parcels were flooded. 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY AND EXPENSE:

If the home is allowed to remain below the flood elevation, it creates a situation which may require the

County to attempt to provide rescue services, at public expense, and risking the safety of rescuers, which

may not be required if the home is raised above the flood elevation, as required by the Ordinance. This

need may increase if the residents have serious medical conditions. The Goodwins' manufactured home

was set 4.8 feet below the elevation required by the Ordinance.

D. MINIMUM NECESSARY RELIEF:

Section 6.3.D of the Ordinance requires that a “variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood

hazard, to afford relief.”

Point 1: It is not clear from the request, from which section of the Floodplain Management Ordinance a

variance is requested (elevation requirement, tie-down requirement, etc.), and for which building on the

lot it is being requested (there are two manufactured homes and a storage / shop building, which all have

floors below the regulatory flood elevation. It appears that a variance from any and all floodplain

requirements is being requested. 



requirements is being requested. 

Point 2: If the intent is to buy time to obtain a grant to elevate the manufactured home, a permanent

variance from all floodplain requirements is NOT the MINIMUM action that could be done to afford

relief. For example, one possible set of actions to provide a minimum amount of relief might be to pursue

the combination of all of the following actions, if permissible under the Ordinance:

1) the Board grants a temporary stay of enforcement action to allow time to obtain a grant to elevate the

mobile home, along with

2) a notice is recorded to deed that the property is non-compliant, and is required to be brought into full

compliance upon transfer of ownership, in order to notify future prospective buyers in the event the

property is placed up for sale before the grant is obtained.

It should be made clear that if the above actions are pursued, to afford minimum relief on the 24 x 60

manufactured home, it is not permissible to make modifications or replacements to other buildings on the

site without permits or compliance with the regulations.

It appears that the request is for a variance, which greatly exceeds the minimum necessary to provide

relief.

Conclusion

1. The justification stated by the applicant is personal in nature, and not based on a characteristic unique

to the property and not shared by adjacent parcels, and therefore, it does not appear to meet the

stipulations for granting a variance found in Section 6.1 of the Gila County Floodplain Management

Ordinance, which is quoted on Exhibit C.

2. If the home is allowed to remain below the flood elevation, it creates a situation which may require the

County to attempt to provide rescue services, at public expense, and risking the safety of rescuers, which

may not be required if the home is raised above the flood elevation, as required by the Ordinance.  This

need may increase if the residents have serious medical conditions.

3. Flood insurance costs rise dramatically for homes placed below the flood elevation.

4. An earthen pad could be constructed to raise the home part of the way, reducing the required height of

the home above the ground to comply with the Ordinance. Standard jacks could even be used to raise the

manufactured home higher than presently set.

5. Section 6.3.D of the Ordinance requires that the variance be the minimum necessary, considering the

flood hazard, to afford relief. As explained above, this request appears to be asking for much more than

the minimum necessary.

Recommendation

Staff recommends denial of this variance request for the reasons stated above.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to convene as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.) 

Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to consider the floodplain variance request submitted

by Roy and Rose Goodwin for Parcel 201-14-018C in Tonto Basin, and to direct the Floodplain

Administrator to record to deed that the property is not in compliance with the Gila County Floodplain

Management Ordinance, and that the 24' x 60' manufactured home, VIN number CAFL2A/B849091498,

is required to be brought into full compliance upon transfer of ownership of the property.  An Affidavit

of Correction of the Floodplain Ordinance Violation can be recorded if the property is brought into

compliance.  (Steve Sanders/Darde deRoulhac) 

(Motion to reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)



(Motion to reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments

Link: Exhibit A-Variance Request by Roy & Rose Goodwin

Link: Exhibit B-Site Information

Link: Exhibit C-Excerpts From Gila County Floodpain Management Ordinance



Paysonflood
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A - Variance Request by Roy and Rose Goodwin

Paysonflood
Typewritten Text







Exhibit B – Site Information
1 - Site Plan
2 - Photo of the 24 x 60 Manufactured Home After Installation
3 - Photo of the 24 x 60 Manufactured Home during Rehab by CAP
4 – Photos of Other Mobile Home on Parcel (1958, 8 x 45, with additions)
5 – Photo of Storage / Shop Building on Parcel
6 - Photograph of Elevated Home on Adjacent Parcel
7 - Aerial Photographs of the Vicinity and Site



1 - Site Plan



2 - Photo by Gila County Assessor's Office Soon After Installation
24' x 60' 1979 Barrington Manufactured Home VIN # CAFL2A/B849091498 (per Assessor's Office) 

(Elevation Annotations Added from Survey Information from Gila County Community Development)



3 - Photos During Rebab Work by Gila County CAP, 10/20/2010
24 ' x 60' 1979 Barrington Manufactured Home VIN # CAFL2A/B849091498 (per assessor's Office)

Note: Mr. Goodwin states this is a 1989 model home.  
This is a discrepancy with the Assessor's data, but references are to the same manufactured home. 



4 - Photos of Other Manufactured Home (with additions) on the Site, with Floor Set at Ground Level
8' x 45' 1958 Poloron Homes – Rockette, VIN # R451484FEE94-642090

10/20/2010



5 -Photograph of Storage / Shop Building on the Parcel. 10/20/2010

6 - Photograph of Elevated Home on Adjacent Parcel Owned by Phillips, 10/20/2010



             << – North
7a - Aerial Photograph of  Vicinity 

(After January, 2010 Flood, Approximate Parcel Boundary Shown in Red)



<< – North

7b - Aerial Photograph of  Site 
(After January, 2010 Flood, Approximate Parcel Boundary Shown in Red)



EXHIBIT C









    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Division: Health Department

Presenter's Name: Lorraine Dalrymple 

Information

Request/Subject

Proclamation No. 10-12 Proclaiming December 2010 as Drunk and Drugged Driving (3D) Prevention Month

Background Information

December is "National Drunk and Drugged Driving Prevention Month.  The Gila County Divison of Health and Emergency

Service in collaboration with the Gila County Sheriff's Department and other community service groups will be initiating a

Public Awareness Campaign on the dangers of drinking and drug use and driving. 

Evaluation

A Media campaign discouraging the use of alcohol/drugs and driving would increase public awareness and reduce the number

of impaired drivers on our roads.

The campaign would begin with the attached proclamation by the Board of Supervisors.  The campaign would include radio,

newspaper and possible TV announcements.  We are attempting to locate 2 DWI Totaled vehicles to be displayed with a sign

stating "Have a Safe Holiday Season,  Don't Drive Impaired."  One vehicle would be located on 60 in Globe and one at the

intersection of 87 and 260 in Payson. A "Red Ribbon" Campaign would be held where individuals would receive red ribbons

to tie onto their cars in support of Drunk and Drugged Driving Prevention.  High School Students would be provided

information regarding underage drinking and drug use, drinking and driving, and not getting into a car with an impaired driver. 

Conclusion

Public awareness will reduce the incidence of drinking and drug use when driving.  This will make the streets safer for all Gila

County residents during this holiday season.

Recommendation

The Gila County Health Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the Proclamation to promote awareness

of the impaired driving problem and promote safer and healthier behaviors regarding the use of alcohol and other drugs.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 10-12 proclaiming December 2010 as Drunk and Drugged Driving

(3D) Prevention Month in Gila County.  (Lorraine Dalrymple)

Attachments

Link: Proclamation 10-12



 

Proclamation No. 10-12 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING 
DECEMBER 2010 AS “DRUNK AND DRUGGED DRIVING PREVENTION MONTH” IN GILA COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, motor vehicle crashes kill over 40,000 people and injure 3 million every year, at a cost to society 
of some $150 billion annually; and 
  
WHEREAS, alcohol-related crashes account for approximately 40 percent of those deaths and injuries; and  
 
WHEREAS, the December holiday season is traditionally one of the most deadly times of the year for alcohol-
impaired driving; and 
  
WHEREAS, for thousands of families across the nation, the December holidays are a sad time to remember 
loved ones they lost to an impaired driver during a previous holiday season; and 
  
WHEREAS, community-based programs involving consumer education, effective laws, and strong law 
enforcement have been proven to be successful in reducing impaired driving; and  
 
WHEREAS, organizations from every state are joining together for Strengthening Safe Communities this 
December by supporting anti-impaired driving programs and policies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the county of Gila is a partner in that effort to make our roads and streets safer;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Gila County Board of Supervisors do hereby proclaim December 2010 as Drunk and 
Drugged Driving  Prevention Month in Gila County and do hereby call upon all citizens, government agencies, 
business leaders, hospitals, schools, and public and private institutions in Gila County to promote awareness 
of the impaired driving problem, to support programs and policies to reduce the incidence of impaired driving, 
to promote safer and healthier behaviors regarding the use of alcohol and other drugs, and to provide 
opportunities for all to participate in Strengthening Safe Communities this December holiday season. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2010. 
 
ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_____________________________  _______________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard     Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
      _______________________________________ 
       Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
 
      _______________________________________ 
       Shirley L. Dawson, Member 
 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Board of Supervisors Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Mike Pastor/Marian Sheppard 

Information

Request/Subject

Board of Supervisors' 2010 Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction of properties deeded to the State of Arizona by the

County Treasurer in 2010.

Background Information

Arizona Revised Statutes sections 42-18301 through 42-18303 outlines the procedures related to the

responsibilities of the County Board of Supervisors once a property has been deeded by the County Treasurer to

the State of Arizona.  Every year the Gila County Board of Supervisors conducts a sale/auction of all properties

that have been deeded to the State by the Treasurer in the current calendar year.  This sale typically takes place in

December.

Evaluation

According to state statutes, a list of the properties held by the state by tax deed was prepared on or before the first

Monday in November.  The list includes a full description of each parcel; name of the former owner, if known;

and the total lien amount which includes the total amount of taxes, interest, penalties, fees and costs, including the

unpaid charges of the county treasurer and recorder.  The list was published on the County's website on November

10, 2010, and advertised in the official newspaper of the County once a week for three weeks prior to the

sale/auction.  The list was also made available to the public at the office of the Board of Supervisors on November

10th.    

Conclusion

Since all applicable statutes have been complied by the Clerk of the Board on behalf of the Board of Supervisors, it

is appropriate for the Board to conduct a sale/auction of nine (9) properties that were recently deeded to the State

of Arizona by the County Treasurer in 2010.  Note:  Ten (10) properties were deeded to the State of Arizona by the

County Treasurer; however, one of those parcels of land will not be sold as it is part of a road which is used to

access privately owned parcels of land.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board recommends that a sale/auction of all newly deeded State-owned properties

be held during a regular meeting of the Board on Tuesday, December 14, 2010.

Suggested Motion

Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction for the sale of real property deeded to the State of Arizona by

Treasurer's Deed in the year 2010, as follows:  101-07-057; 101-07-175; 101-07-227; 101-10-030-A;

102-26-001-B; 201-08-054-B; 207-15-506; 304-01-362-H; 304-01-362-J and 305-10-022-D.  (Mike

Pastor/Marian Sheppard)

Attachments

Link: 2010 BOS Property Tax Sale/Auction List

Link: Parcel No. 101-07-057 Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 101-07-175 Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 101-07-227 Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 101-10-030-A Map & Photos



Link: Parcel No. 101-10-030-A Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 102-26-001-B Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 201-08-054-B Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 207-15-506 Map & Photos

Link: Parcel No. 304-01-362-H Map & Photo

Link: Parcel No. 304-01-362-J Map & Photo

Link: Parcel No. 304-10-022-D Map & Photo



 1

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ ANNUAL PROPERTY TAX SALE 
Parcels Deeded to the State of Arizona in 2010 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §42-18301 and §42-18302, PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona, may sell to 
the highest bidder the following described real properties held in the name of the State of Arizona by Treasurer’s Deed.  The SUPERVISORS’ 
PROPERTY TAX SALE will be held on TUESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2010, in the SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 E. ASH STREET, 
GLOBE, ARIZONA, at 10:00 a.m.  All bids must be submitted in person at the time of the sale.  No mail-in bids will be accepted.  Per Gila County 
Resolution number 03-06-07, an amount equal to the total lien amount of the property is the minimum acceptable bid.  Only cash, cashier’s check or 
a money order will be accepted.  Payment must be made within 48 hours of the date of the sale.  A $14 fee will also be charged to record the quit 
claim deed.  The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids deemed unreasonable or an unfair price. 
 
Prospective purchasers are advised that:  1) ALL SALES ARE FINAL; 2) THE TITLE CONVEYED BY TREASURER’S DEED MAY OR MAY 
NOT BE MARKETABLE; 3) EXAMINE PROPERTY BEFORE BIDDING; 4) CHECK THE ASSESSOR’S MAP FOR THE LOCATION OF THE 
PARCEL; 5) SEEK ADVICE ON MARKETABILITY OF TITLE CONVEYED BY A TREASURER’S DEED; 6) NO WARRANTIES OR 
GUARANTEES AS TO THE SIZE OR CONDITION OF PROPERTY IS GIVEN; AND, 7) NO REFUNDS WILL BE MADE. 
 

PARCEL # PREVIOUS OWNER LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Additional information is in parenthesis, which is not part of 

the legal description 

LIEN 
AMOUNT ($) 

101-07-057 CRUZ, GARY HAYDEN TWS LOT 17 BLK 3 S 44′ OF E 25′ PER 139/123 
(BEHIND 107 EAST FIFTH STREET IN HAYDEN.  A TINY 
PIECE OF LAND WITH A SHED.) 

$  2,300.50  

101-07-175 VERDUGO, CLAUDIO R. HAYDEN TWNS LOT 18 BLK 23 (554 SAN PEDRO AVENUE 
IN HAYDEN.  A TINY PIECE OF LAND BETWEEN 2 
HOUSES, WHICH INCLUDES A BLOCK WALL NEXT TO 
THE STREET.) 

$  1,904.70

101-07-227 MARTINEZ,  SALVADOR M. 
JR. & BERTA L. C/O WILMA 
LIJAN 

HAYDEN TWNS LOT 11 BLK 25 (565 WEST FOURTH 
STREET IN HAYDEN. A HOUSE SITS ON THIS PROPERTY.) 

$  3,443.45

101-10-030-A RAYES, WASIM,  
RAYES, RIMA 

PT NE SEC 23 T5S R15E; COMM NE COR SEC 23; TH S 
69D59′39W 952.12′; TH N 40D26′ W 8.86′ TO POB; TH S 
42D55′42W 179.27′; TH N 43D08′30W 134.28′; TH N 69D37′ E 
186.76′; TH S 49D34′ E 63.09′ POB; APPROX 0.39 AC M/L (692 
WEST ARIZONA HIGHWAY 177 IN HAYDEN.  THIS WAS 
THE ONE STOP MARKET & LIQUOR STORE.  
UNDERGROUND GAS STORAGE TANKS RESIDE ON THE 
PROPERTY, SO THERE WILL BE EPA-RELATED ISSUES 

$  30,192.70



 2

FOR THE PROPERTY OWNER.)  
102-26-001-B PRESTON, PETER PCL IN HES 129 SEC2+11 T1S R15E COM AT COR #5 HES 

129 TH S 19DEG 25MIN W 296.04 FT TH S 70DEG 35MIN E 
130 FT TO POB: TH N 19DEG 25MIN E 50FT TH S 70DEG 
35MIN E 41FT TH S 19DEG 25MIN W 50FT TH N 70DEG 
35MIN W 41FT TO POB. 

$  431.18

201-08-054-B BORRINK, CARL E. & JANE L. COMM CTR SEC 26; TH EAST 1248.41′ POB; TH EAST 74.22′; 
TH N0D12′8 E 72.82′; TH NLY ALG ARC OF CURV TO RGT 
264.38′; TH N24D57′14 W 296.22′; TH N89D57′42 W 106.45′; 
TH S27D57′14 E 333.83′; TH SLY ALG CURV TO LFT 299.48′ 
POB; NW4 SEC 26 T6N R10E;= 1.44 AC M/L (A.D.O.T. 
RIGHT-OF-WAY; PART OF STATE ROUTE 188 – CAN’T BE 
USED FOR ANYTHING OTHER THAN THE HIGHWAY. ) 

$  469.26

207-15-506  ASAY, LAURA; STEMM, 
LENNA; TYLER, 
MARGUERITE; KRAMER, 
BOBBY ROSE; DUGAN, 
DENNIS; AND MAUREL, 
ROBERT – AN INDIVIDED 
ONE-SEVENTH INTEREST 

MAUREL SUB SE NE SEC 26 1N 15E BLK 5 SUB SURF RTS 
BELOW 100′ DEPTH (THESE ARE SUBSURFACE RIGHT 
ONLY!) 

$383.76  

304-01-362-H SELL, JAMES C., APPOINTED 
RECEIVER C/O WESTAR 
LOAN SERVICING CORP. 

POR SE4 SE4 SEC 2; BEG NW COR SE4 SE4 SEC 2; TH 
S89D58′35 E 54′; TH S0D12′41 W 333.39′; TH N89D58′35 W 54′; 
TH N0D12′41 E 333.39′ POB; SE4 SE4 SEC 2 T10N R10E;= 0.41 
AC M/L  (THIS IS A ROAD.) 

$  372.95

304-01-362-J SELL, JAMES C. (APPOINTED) POR SE4 SE4 SEC 2; COM NW COR SE4 SE4 SEC 2; TH 
S0D12′41 W 333.39′; TH S89D58′35 E 54′; TH S0D12′41 W 
665.27′; TH N89D58′35 W 54′; TH N0D12′41 E 665.27′ POB; SE4 
SE4 SEC 2 T10N R10E; = 0.82 AC M/L (THIS IS A ROAD.) 

$  405.22

305-10-022-D GRAHAM, WILLIAM R. 
(TRUSTEE) 

THE WEST 30′ OF THE N1/2 OF NE1/4 SW1/4 NE1/4 
SECTION 23 T9N R13E EQUALS 0.23 ACRE M/L (OUT OF 
305-10-005X)  (THIS IS PART OF A ROAD.)  

$363.32

 
To be published in the Arizona Silver Belt on the following dates:  November 24, 2010, December 1, 2010, and December 8, 2010 





































































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 1-1-11 through 12-31-11 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information

Request/Subject

Annual contract award pertaining to Call for Bids No. 111510-1 - Gila County newspaper advertising, publications

and printing for calendar year 2011.

Background Information

ARS 11-255 (A) states, "The board shall contract annually for all advertising, publications and printing required

to be done or made by all departments of county government ."  Subsection (B) of that statute states, "Written

notice of letting the contract shall be deposited in the post office by the clerk of the board, postage prepaid,

addressed to the office of each qualified newspaper within the county, at least ten days prior to the opening of bids,

calling for written bids for the advertising, publications and printing required by all county departments during the

ensuing year, and stating on what day the bids received will be opened ."

Evaluation

On November 22, 2010, the bid specifications for this contract were sent by certified mail to the two newspapers;

Arizona Silver Belt and Payson Roundup,  which are qualified by statute to provide these services. 

Those newspapers have for at least one year have been admitted to the United States mail as second-class matter. 

A public notice of this Call for Bids was also published in the Arizona Silver Belt, the official newspaper of Gila

County for 2010, on December 1, 2010.

Conclusion

Bids were opened by Marilyn Brewer and Valrie Bejarano in the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors' office at 10

a.m. on Monday, December 6, 2010, of which a summary of the bidders' names and qualifications is attached to

this agenda item.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors review all bids submitted pertaining to Call for

Bids No. 111510-1 and award a contract to the lowest and best bidder.  

ARS 11-255 (D) states, "The newspaper which is awarded the contract pursuant to subsection C may be referred to

as the official newspaper of the county ."

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Call for Bids No. 111510-1 to provide all

advertising, publications and printing required to be done or made by all departments of Gila County for calendar

year 2011; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on

the contract for the winning bidder.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments



Link: Call for Bids No. 111510-1

Link: Public Notice for Call for Bids NO. 111510-1

Link: Certified Letters re Call for Bids No. 111510-1

Link: Bid Sheet

Link: Arizona Silver Belt Bid 12-06-10

Link: Acceptance of Offer--Arizona Silver Belt 































BID 111510-1 
NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The  Bidder      Arizona Silver Belt        is now bound to provide the services listed in Bid Call No.: 
111510-1 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Bidders Offer as 
accepted by Gila County/public entity. 
 
The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 111510-1   . The Bidder has been 
cautioned not to commence any billable work or to provide any service under this Contract until it 
receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 
 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 

 Awarded this         14th       day of               December          , 2010. 

 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 ______________________________________________ 
 Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Resolution No. 10-11-01 establishing guidelines for the selection of the Gila County Redistricting

Committee

Background Information

ARS 11-212 and 11-252 (2) require the board of Supervisors meet following the decennial census and

divide the county into supervisorial districts.  Thus, redistricting for Gila County will be done in 2011. 

The Board of Supervisors may, at their discretion, establish a citizens Redistricting Committee.  The

Article 4, Part 2 Section 1 of the Arizona Constitution provides for  the establishment of an independent

redistricting commission on a State level.  

Evaluation

The Board of Supervisors desires to establish fair and equitable guidelines for the appointment of a

citizens Redistricting Committee. The Redistricting Committee will work under the auspices of the

Board of Supervisors, the Gila County Director of Elections, and consultants to obtain public input, hold

public hearings, and review alternative redistricting plans.  The Arizona Constitution redistricting

commission selection process provides appropriate background information for the development of fair

and equitable County selection guidelines

Conclusion

In order to ensure citizen appointments are fair and equitable, the guidelines contained in Resolution No.

10-11-01 have been developed for the Board's consideration.

Recommendation

It is recommended the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution 10-11-01 and establish fair and equitable

guidelines for the appointment of a citizens Redistricting Committee.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-11-01 establishing guidelines for the

selection of the Gila County Redistricting Committee.  (Linda Eastlick)

Attachments

Link: Resolution 10-11-01

Link: Redistricting Committee Selection Guidelines

Link: AZ Constitution Article 4

Link: ARS 11-212



Link: ARS 11-251 (2)



 

 

After recording, return to: 

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 

Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 10-11-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR THE 

SELECTION OF THE GILA COUNTY REDISTRICTING COMMITTEE 

 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §11-212 the Gila County Board of Supervisors shall 

meet at the county seat on or before December 1 following the release of the United States 

decennial census data and divide the county into three districts and shall define the boundaries 

and limits of each district and make the division equal or with not more than ten percent 

difference in population, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of establishing a Gila 

County Redistricting Committee to collect public input to the redistricting process, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Article 4 Part 2 Section 1 of the Arizona Constitution sets forth 

guidelines for the State independent redistricting commission, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of establishing guidelines 

for selection of the Gila County Redistricting Committee members. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors, does hereby adopt the attached “Gila County Redistricting Committee Selection 

Guidelines.” 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16
th

 day of November 2010. 

 

 

Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________  

Marian Sheppard Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 



GILA COUNTY 

REDISTRICTING COMMITTEE SELECTION GUIDELINES 

 

 

In an effort to ensure a fair and unbiased redistricting and the fair and unbiased selection process 

of Redistricting Committee members, the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the 

following guidelines: 

 

1. By February 28 of each year following the decennial census, a Gila County Redistricting 

Committee shall be established to provide for the redistricting of the Gila County Board of 

Supervisor Districts. 

 

2. The Redistricting Committee shall consist of nine members.  No more than four members of 

the redistricting Committee shall be members of the same political party 

 

3. Of the nine members appointed, no more than four shall reside in the same precinct. 

 

4. Each member shall be a registered Arizona voter who has been continuously registered with 

the same political party or registered as unaffiliated with a political party for three or more 

years immediately preceding appointment. 

 

5. Each member shall be committed to working on the Redistricting Committee in an honest, 

independent, and impartial fashion and to upholding public confidence in the integrity of the 

redistricting process. 

 

6. Within the three years previous to appointment, members shall not have been appointed to, 

elected to, or a candidate for any other public office, including precinct committeeman or 

committeewoman but not including school board member or officer, and shall not have 

served as an officer of a political party, or served as a registered paid lobbyist or as an officer 

of a candidate’s campaign committee. 

 

7. A Redistricting Committee member, during the committee member’s term of office and for 

three years thereafter, shall be ineligible for public office or for registration as a paid lobbyist  

 

8. The Board of Supervisors shall each nominate eight candidates from their respective districts 

for appointment to the Redistricting Committee 

 

9. By January 8 of each year following the decennial census, the Board of Supervisors, or its 

designee, shall establish a pool of persons who are willing to serve on and are qualified for 

appointment to the Redistricting Committee.  The pool of candidates shall consist of twenty-

four nominees, with no more than ten nominees from each of the two largest political parties 

in Arizona based on party registration and four who are not registered with either of the two 

largest political parties in Arizona. 

 

10. Appointments to the Redistricting Committee shall be made no later than January 31 of the 

year following the decennial census as follows:  



 

 

A. The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors shall make one appointment to the 

Redistricting Committee from the pool of nominees followed by one appointment 

from the pool made in turn by each of the following:  the Vice Chair of the Gila 

County Board of Supervisors, and the third member of the Board of Supervisors This 

process is completed three times until all nine members are appointed. 

 

B.  Each such official shall have a seven-day period in which to make an appointment.  

Any official who fails to make an appointment within the specified time period will 

forfeit the appointment privilege.   

 

C. Any vacancy in the above nine Redistricting Committee positions remaining as of 

March 1 of the year following the decennial census shall be filled from the pool of 

nominees by the Board of Supervisors.  The Board shall strive for political balance 

and fairness. 

 

11. The nine Redistricting Committee members shall select by majority vote one of their 

members to serve as chair and one of their members to serve as vice-chair.  If the committee 

fails to select a chair within 15 days, the Board of Supervisors, striving for political balance 

and fairness, shall appoint a chair from amongst the nine members. 

 

12. Redistricting Committee members must attend 2/3 of the committee meetings.  After having 

been served written notice, and provided with an opportunity for a response, a member of the 

Redistricting Committee may be removed by the Board of Supervisors for substantial neglect 

of duty, gross misconduct in office, or inability to discharge the duties of office. 

 

13. If a committee member does not complete the term of office for any reason, the Board of 

Supervisors, or its designee, shall nominate a pool of three candidates within the first thirty 

days after the vacancy occurs.  The nominees shall be of the same political party or status as 

was the member who vacated the office at the time of his or her appointment, and the 

appointment, other than the chair, shall be made by the current holder of the office 

designated to make the original appointment.  The appointment of a new chair shall be made 

by the remaining Redistricting Committee members.  If the appointment of a replacement 

committee member or chair is not made within fourteen days following the presentation of 

the nominees, the Board of Supervisors, or its designee, shall make the appointment striving 

for political balance and fairness.  The newly appointed committee member shall serve out 

the remainder of the original term. 

 

14. Seven committee members, including the chair or vice-chair, constitute a quorum.  Seven or 

more affirmative votes are required for any official action.  Where a quorum is present, the 

Redistricting committee shall conduct business in meetings open to the public, with 48 or 

more hours public notice provided. 

 













    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Certification of Proposition No. 112 Recount Results from General Election

Background Information

ARS 16-661(A)(4) provides for an automatic recount of the vote when the canvass of returns shows that

the margin between the number of votes cast for and against an initiated or referred measure to amend

the Constitution of Arizona is less than or equal to two hundred votes.

 

ARS 16-662 provides that when the canvass shows that a recount is required, the secretary of state

shall certify the facts requiring the recount to the superior court in Maricopa County.    

ARS 16-663 requires the superior court to make and enter an order requiring the recount.  

ARS 16-665 provides the result of the recount shall be presented to the court and the court shall then

announce the result and enter an order setting forth its determination.

Evaluation

In the case of Proposition 112, the margin was 128 votes, thus a Statewide automatic recount was

triggered.  The recount order was issued by the superior court in Maricopa County on November 29,

2010.

The recount is limited to Proposition 112 only.  No other race will be recounted.  The Gila County

recount began Friday, December 3, 2010.

Conclusion

The recount was performed as required.  The Board of Supervisors is now required to certify the recount

results prior to December 16, 2010.  The certified results will be submitted to the Secretary of State for

submission to the superior court.

Recommendation

Review and certify the recount results for Proposition 112.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to certify the Proposition 112 recount results from the General Election

held on November 2, 2010.   (Linda Eastlick)



Attachments

Link: ARS Recount Statutes

Link: Ltr to SOS - Certification of Recount Results



16-661. Automatic recount; requirements; exemption 

A. A recount of the vote is required when the canvass of returns in a primary or general election 

shows that the margin between the two candidates receiving the greatest number of votes for a 

particular office, or between the number of votes cast for and against initiated or referred 

measures or proposals to amend the Constitution of Arizona, is less than or equal to the lesser of 

the following: 

1. One-tenth of one per cent of the number of votes cast for both such candidates or upon such 

measures or proposals.  

2. Two hundred votes in the case of an office to be filled by state electors and for which the total 

number of votes cast is more than twenty-five thousand. 

3. Fifty votes in the case of an office to be filled by state electors and for which the total number 

of votes cast is twenty-five thousand or less. 

4. Two hundred votes in the case of an initiated or referred measure or proposal to amend the 

constitution.  

5. Fifty votes in the case of a member of the legislature.  

6. Ten votes in the case of an office to be filled by the electors of a city or town or a county or 

subdivision of a city, town or county. 

B. Subsection A does not apply to elections for precinct committeemen, school district governing 

boards, community college district governing boards, fire district boards or fire district chiefs or 

secretary-treasurers or boards of other special districts.  

16-662. Certification to superior court of facts requiring recount 

When the canvass shows that a recount is required, the secretary of state shall, in the case of an 

office to be filled by electors of the entire state, a congressional district, a legislative district or a 

subdivision of the state greater than a county, initiated or referred measures or proposals to 

amend the constitution, certify the facts requiring the recount to the superior court in Maricopa 

county. In the case of an office to be filled by the electors of a county or subdivision of a county 

or precinct, the board of supervisors of such county or in the case of an office to be filled by the 

electors of a city or town, the city or town council of that city or town shall certify the facts 

requiring a recount to the superior court in the county in which the canvass was conducted.  

16-663. Recount of votes; method 

A. The superior court to which the facts requiring a recount are certified shall forthwith make 

and enter an order requiring a recount of the votes cast for such office, measure or proposal. The 

recount shall be conducted in accordance with the laws pertaining to contests of elections. 



B. When the court orders a recount of votes which were cast and tabulated on electronic voting 

equipment, such recount shall be pursuant to section 16-664. On completion of the recount, and 

for legislative, statewide and federal candidate races only, the county chairmen of the political 

parties entitled to continued representation on the ballot or the chairman's designee shall select at 

random without the use of a computer five per cent of the precincts for the recounted race for a 

hand count, and if the results of that hand count when compared to the electronic tabulation of 

that same race are less than the designated margins calculated pursuant to section 16-602, the 

recount is complete and the electronic tabulation is the official result. If the hand count results in 

a difference that is equal to or greater than the designated margin for that race, the procedure 

established in section 16-602, subsections C, D, E and F applies.  

16-665. Determination of results by court; distribution of copies of order of determination 

A. The result of the recount shall be presented to the court, and the court shall then announce the 

result and make and enter an order setting forth its determination. 

B. A certified copy of the order of the court determining the result shall forthwith be delivered by 

the clerk of the court to the following officers: 

1. To the governor with respect to an initiative or referendum measure, or proposal to amend the 

Constitution of Arizona. The governor shall forthwith issue a proclamation reciting the total 

number of votes cast for or against the initiative or referendum measure, or amendment to the 

constitution, as certified by the court, and declaring such measure or amendment as approved by 

a majority voting thereon, as certified by the court, to be the law. 

2. To the secretary of state with respect to offices to be filled by electors of the entire state, a 

congressional district, a legislative district or a subdivision of the state greater than a county. The 

secretary of state shall forthwith deliver to the candidate entitled thereto, as certified by the court, 

the certificate of election. 

3. To the clerk of the board of supervisors with respect to offices to be filled by electors of the 

county or a subdivision of a county, or a precinct, or in the case of an office to be filled by the 

electors of a city or town, to the city or town clerk. The clerk of the board of supervisors or the 

city or town clerk shall forthwith deliver to the candidate entitled thereto, as certified by the 

court, the certificate of election.  

 



December 14, 2010 

 

 

 

Honorable Ken Bennett 

Arizona Secretary of State 

1700 West Washington Street 

Phoenix, AZ  85007 

 

 

Dear Secretary Bennett: 

 

 I, the undersigned, being the Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors do 

hereby certify that on Tuesday, December 14, 2010, the Gila County Board of Supervisors did 

certify the Proposition 112 recount results for Gila County, Arizona, and do testify that the 

tabulation of votes attached hereto is a true and correct copy of all votes cast for said Proposition 

112.. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my signature and the Great Seal of Gila 

County at Globe, Arizona, this 14th 
 
day of December, 2010.   

 

      Gila County Board of Supervisors   

 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 12-14-10 to 10-31-11 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Tonto Creek Bridge Professional Consulting Services Contract 6511.526/10-2010 with C.L. Williams

Consulting, Inc.

Background Information

Gila County is currently planning for a new bridge across Tonto Creek near Punkin Center south of

Payson.  The bridge will be a new crossing as well as the associated access roadway.  Given the nature

of the project a professional consultant is necessary in providing the County with various survey and

engineering work as well as interaction and coordination with the design consultant, the Arizona

Department of Transportation (ADOT), and the Federal Highway Agency (FHWA).

Evaluation

There will be three phases performed during the term of the contract:  1. Data Collection, Coordination

and Meetings   2.  Technical Reviews-Environmental Permits, Design Concept Report (DCR) and

Design Phase and 3.  Deliverables.  The Consultant will support the County during development of the

necessary federal environmental permits, DCR and actual design phase of the Plans, Specifications and

Estimates (PS&E) for the project by providing necessary technical review services.  The Consultant will

be working closely with the design consultant to ensure all necessary project elements are clearly

understood and addressed.  Once the environmental permit and DCR have been completed, the

Consultant will provide technical review services of the PS&E and provide the County with all

submitted documentation by the design consultant.

Conclusion

The Consultant will assist the County in the technical review and support during the permitting, concept

design, agency coordination, and final design phase of the project.  The Consultant has been involved in

the Tonto Creek Bridge project since 2007.  Due to their extensive knoweldge and involvement with the

project it is beneficial to the County to continue with the same Consultant.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board approve the award of Professional Consulting

Services Contract 6511.526/10-2010 for the Tonto Creek Bridge Project.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract No. 6511.526/10-2010



Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract No. 6511.526/10-2010

between Gila County and C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc. whereby consulting services will be provided

for the Tonto Creek Bridge Project in the amount of $119,000.00 from December 14, 2010, to October

31, 2011.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments

Link: Executive Summary Form For Professional Services

Link: Professional Consulting Services Contract with C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc.























    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 6/30/2010 to 7/01/2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: Yes  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

New grant application for Local Transportation Assistance Funds (LTAF II) SFY 2011.

Background Information

Gila County uses these funds to award money to the various senior centers, Boys and Girls Club, Copper

Spike and Dial-A-Ride for the operation of their transit programs. Gila County has been receiving these

funds since 2001 (or earlier) and this could possibly be the last grant to be offered due to the State

budget cuts. The match is 25% and needs to come from General Funds.

Evaluation

It is very beneficial to many entities that Gila County has been able to provide them with these additional

operating funds.  With everyone feeling the financial strain of raising cost of operation it is important for

Gila County to assist where possible. 

Conclusion

This could be the last year for the grant to be offered due to the State budget cuts and it is in the best

interest of many for Gila County to receive these funds.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the LTAF II SFY 2011 Grant

Application and Resolution No. 10-21-01.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-21-01 and to authorize the submission of a

SFY 2011 LTAF II Grant Application to the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) to assist in

eligible transit-related projects that are qualified under ADOT guidelines in the amount of $21,598.48

with a County match of $5,399.62. (Steve Stratton)

Attachments

Link: Resolution and app









    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Claudia DalMolin, Chief Administrative Officer

Submitted By: Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Presenter's Name: Sheriff John R. Armer 

Information

Request/Subject

Vehicle Transfer from the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Miami Police Department (2004 Dodge

Intrepid Vin #283HD46V54H702769)

Background Information

Several months ago Sgt. Baxley interdicted a 2004 Dodge Intrepid Vin #283HD46V54H702769 on U.S.

60 transporting marijuana. This case has been adjudicated as well as the vehicle forfeiture process. The

Dodge Intrepid is an old police vehicle which has the plastic rear seat and the black and white paint

scheme, including the outline of police decals it had at one time on the exterior.  Sheriff Armer would

like to propose that the Gila County Sheriff's Office consider transferring this vehicle to the Miami

Police Department for their patrol use as they are in need of vehicles.

Evaluation

Several months ago Sgt. Baxley interdicted a 2004 Dodge Intrepid Vin #283HD46V54H702769 on U.S.

60 transporting marijuana. This case has been adjudicated as well as the vehicle forfeiture process. The

Dodge Intrepid is an old police vehicle which has the plastic rear seat and the black and white paint

scheme, including the outline of police decals it had at one time on the exterior.  Sheriff Armer would

like to propose that the Gila County Sheriff's Office consider transferring this vehicle to the Miami

Police Department for their patrol use as they are in need of vehicles.

Conclusion

Transferring this vehicle to the Miami Police Department will enhance their fleet as they are in need of

vehicles.

Recommendation

The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve a

vehicle transfer of a 2004 Dodge Intrepid to the Miami Police Department.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve a vehicle transfer of a 2004 Dodge Intrepid (Vin

#283HD46V54H702769) from the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Miami Police Department.  (John

Armer/Claudia DalMolin)

Attachments

Link: Letter Regarding Vehicle Transfer to Miami PD





    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff

Submitted By: Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Interlock Agreement with the Town of Payson for 2010 Bryne Justice Assistance Grant Award

Background Information

The Town of Payson is considered a disparate community and is required to enter into a memorandum of

understanding with the Gila County Sheriff's Office for allocation of this grant funding.

Evaluation

Section 1: The Town of Payson acknowledges that they have been identified as a disparate community

and must enter into a memorandum of understanding with the Gila County Sheriff's Office for allocation

of grant funds within Gila County, Arizona.

Section 2: It has been agreed that the disparate jurisdictions of the Town of Payson and the Gila County

Sheriff's Office within Gila County agree that it is acceptable for the Town of Payson Police Department

be allowed to accept funds in the amount of $10,361 from the Department of Justice under the FY10

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program.

Conclusion

Section 1:  The Town of Payson acknowledges that they have been identified as a disparate community

and must enter into a memorandum of understanding with the Gila County Sheriff's Office for allocation

of grant funds within Gila County, Arizona.

Section 2:  It has been agreed that the disparate jurisdictions of the Town of Payson and the Gila County

Sheriff's Office within Gila County agree that it is acceptable for the Town of Payson Police Department

be allowed to accept funds in the amount of $10,361 from the Department of Justice under FY10 Edward

Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program.

Recommendation

The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests the Gila County Board of Supervisor's approval for this

Interlock Agreement 2010 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Program between the Gila County Sheriff's

Office and the Town of Payson (a disparate community).

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Interlock Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's

Office and the Town of Payson (a disparate community) for the 2010 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant

Program Award in the amount $10,361.  (John Armer/Claudia DalMolin)

Attachments

Link: Interlock Agreement with Town of Payson for Bryne Grant Award







    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Debi Savage -

County Treasurer

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Treasurer's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 12/14/10 - 12/13/12 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Debi Savage 

Information

Request/Subject

Contract award for Bid No. 080310-1 General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support

Background Information

The existing DSA General Ledger package used by the Treasurer's office is antiquated and in danger of

crashing.  This would result in a ceasing of office operations and cause the office to be out of audit and

compliance.  The proposed Eagle Software System would provide everything the office needs to function

at current standards.

Evaluation

If the existing General Ledger system were to "crash" the office would be completely dependent on

manual processing.  There are too many entities to keep track of manually.  The new system is long

overdue and will allow the Treasurer's Office to interface with the County School Supertendent's Office

and Finance Department.

Conclusion

The Treasurer's Office has budgeted the funds necessary for the pruchase of the Eagle Software System

and staff support and training for the system.

Recommendation

The Gila County Treasurer recommends the Board of Supervisors award a contract for Bid No. 080310-1

General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No. 080310-1

for the purchase of the General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support System; award to the

lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract

for the winning bidder.  (Debi Savage)

Attachments

Link: Bid Tab No. 080310-1

Link: Bid 080310-1

Link: System Agreement



       GILA COUNTY                       BID NO.:      080310-1           DATE:  09-15-2010     
BID TAB FORM    

                             BID TITLE:    General Ledger Treasurer’s Banking Software 

R
an

k
in

g 

 
 

Contractor  /  Vendor  /  Firm 

 
 

Bid Amount 

 
 

Comments 

 
1 

 

Tyler Technologies 

 

 

$ 48,320.00 

$ 44,540.00 

$ 14,130.00 

 
  Software 
  Service 
  Travel 

 
2 

 

 

 

$ 106,990.00   Total 
 
 
(annual maintenance $12,557) 

 
3 

 

 

 

  

 
4 

 

 

 

  

 
5 

 

 

 

  

 
6 

 

 

 

  

 
7 

 

 

 

  

 
8 

 

 

 

  

 
9 

 

 

 

  

 
10 

 

 

 

  

 





































































































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Debi Savage Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Treasurer's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 12/14/10 to 12/14/11 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Debi Savage 

Information

Request/Subject

Professional Service Agreement No. 1005.203/12-2010 Treasurer's Warrant Conversion with Robert

Heming.

Background Information

The Gila County Treasurer's Department is implementing a new General Ledger Treasurer's Banking

Software System which requires the conversion from DSA to the new Tyler System.  The Consultant

will provide the necessary work required for the conversion.

Evaluation

The Consultant will provide the county with warrant conversation from DSA Treasurer's General Ledger

into the new Tyler Technologies General Ledger Eagle System.  The Consultant will also extract

outstanding warrant data into the format requested by Tyler Technologies.

Conclusion

The DSA conversion is a necessary step in the process of converting over to the new Tyler System.

Recommendation

The Gila County Treasurer recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Professional

Service Agreement Contract 1005.203/12-2010 for the Treasurer's Warrant Conversion.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Agreement No. 1005.203/12-2010

between Gila County and Robert Heming whereby the Consultant will provide for the conversion from

DSA to the new Tyler System in the amount of $5,000.00 for the period December 14, 2010, to

December 14, 2011.  ( Debi Savage)

Attachments

Link: Executive Summary

Link: Professional Services Agreement No. 1005.203/12-2010 with Robert Heming



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FORM   

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Treasurer’s Warrant Conversion 

 
Contract No.: 

 
1005.203/12-2010 

 
 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) 
 

The Gila County Treasurer’s Office is implementing a new General Ledger Treasurer’s Banking Software System 
which requires the conversion from DSA to the new Tyler System.  The Consultant will provide the necessary 
support during the conversion. 

 

 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
December 14, 2011 

 
Renewal Option: 

      
          Yes 

          No 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
$5,000.00 

 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
Robert Hemming 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Robert Hemming 

 
Address: 

 
 

 
Phone No: 

 
 

 
City: 

 
Holbrook 

 
State: 

 
AZ 

 
Fax: 

 
 

 
Email: 

 
 

 
 

 
Fund: 

 
1005 

 
Type of Funds: 

 
           Restricted 

              Grant 
Fund Code: 1005.203_4260.10             General Fund 

              Other 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tommie C. Martin, District I 
P.O. Box 2297  Payson, AZ.  85547 
(928) 474-2029 
 
Michael A. Pastor, District II 
1400 E. Ash St.  Globe, AZ.  85501 
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753 
 
Shirley L. Dawson, District III 
1400 E. Ash St.  Globe, AZ.  85501 
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 

www.gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

 
 

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.8761 

 
Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director 

Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743 
 

 
                                                FAX (928) 425-0319 

                        TTY:  7-1-1          
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT  
NO. 1005.203/12-2010 

 
TREASURER’S WARRANT CONVERSION 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this    14th    day of      December   , 2010, by and 
between the Gila County Board of Supervisors, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter 
designated the County, and      Robert Heming       of the City of    Holbrook   , County of     Navajo   , State 
of Arizona, hereinafter designated the Consultant. 

 
 

WITNESSETH:  That the Consultant, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid him by the 
County, in the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements 
herein contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I – SCOPE OF SERVICES:  The Gila County Treasurer’s Department is implementing a new 
General Ledger Treasurer’s Banking Software System which requires the conversion from DSA to the new 
Tyler System.  The Consultant will provide the necessary support during the conversion as follows: 

 
 Warrant extraction from existing DSA (Data System of Arizona) Treasurer’s General Ledger program.  

Data will be utilized by Tyler Technologies for import into Tyler Technologies New Treasurers General 
Ledger for Gila County. 

 Extract outstanding warrant data into format requested by Tyler Technologies. 
 Create file format that is most suitable for Tyler Technologies conversion team, and work with Tyler 

Technologies and Gila County to verify that all Data extracted from DSA (Data Systems of Arizona) and 
imported into new General Ledger System is complete and accurate. 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/�


         

2 
 

County will provide to the Consultant: 

 An overview of relevant policies associated with the project. 
 Access to all information, documentation and technology necessary for consultant to perform the 

required services. 
 Access to necessary systems for conversion. 
 
 

ARTICLE II – SCHEDULE:   Contract period shall run for one (1) year beginning on the day it is 
approved by the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  This period may be renewed by mutual agreement of 
both parties for one (1) additional one (1) year period. 
 
 

ARTICLE III – TERMS:   

 Relationship to Parties:  Consultant is an independent Consultant of the County and represents that 
he has or will secure, at his own expense, all personnel required in performing the services under this 
contract.  Such personnel shall not be employees of or have contractual relationship with the County.  
All personnel engaged in work under this contract shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or 
permitted under State and Local Law to perform such services.  It is further agreed the Consultant 
shall obey all State and Federal Statutes, rules and regulations which are applicable to provisions of 
the services called for herein.  Neither Consultant nor any employee of the Consultant shall be 
deemed an officer, employee, or agent of the County. 

 
 Non-Appropriations:  Consultant acknowledges the County is a governmental entity, and the contract 

validity is based upon the availability of public funding under its authority.  In the event that public 
funds are unavailable and not appropriated for the performance of County’s obligations under this 
contract, then this contract shall automatically expire without penalty of public funds.  It is expressly 
agreed that the County shall not activate this non-appropriation provision for its convenience or to 
circumvent the requirements of this contract, but only as an emergency fiscal ensure. 

 
 Non-Waiver of Enforceability:  Failure of the County to enforce, at any time, any of the provisions of 

this contract, or to request at any time performance of Consultant of any of the provisions hereof, 
shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor in any way be construed to be a 
waiver of such provisions, not in any way affect the validity of this contract or any part thereof, or the 
right of the County to enforce each and every provision. 

 
 
ARTICLE IV – INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE:  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, save and hold 

harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as 
“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses 
(including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) 
(hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or 
damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of Consultant or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered 



         

3 
 

under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Consultant to conform to any 
federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention 
of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Consultant from and against any and all 
claims.  It is agreed that the Consultant will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and 
judgment costs  
 
 

ARTICLE V – LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Consultant hereby warrants that it 
will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to 
Consultant’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the 
“State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Consultant shall further ensure that each subcontractor who 
performs any work for Consultant under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws.  County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Consultant 
and any subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration 
Laws.   
  
Any breach of Consultant’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of 
this Contract subjecting Consultant to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this 
Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, 
Consultant shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services 
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to 
Consultant approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project 
completion.   Consultant shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s 
obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following 
form: 
  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all 
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records 
to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by 
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract.”  
 Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Consultant.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or 
more tasks on the critical path of Consultant’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such 
period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay for which Consultant shall be entitled to an extension of 
time, but not costs. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI – LAWS AND ORDINANCES:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the 
State of Arizona.  Consultant shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and 
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Consultant.  The Consultant shall 



         

4 
 

comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 
12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII – ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY:  Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the Consultant 
certifies that it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are 
in compliance with the Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List. 

 
 
ARTICLE VIII – CANCELLATION:  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-

511.  If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered 
and accepted material received by the County before the effective date of termination. The Consultant 
shall be considered in default of this contract and such default will be considered as cause to terminate 
the contract for any of the following reasons if the Consultant: 

 
a. Fails to perform the work under the contract within the time specified in the “Notice to 

Proceed”; or 
b. Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or data to assure 

completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 
c. Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to follow the Scope of Work; or 
d. Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 
e. Fails to resume work which as been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice to do so; 

or 
f. Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency; or 
g. Makes assignment for the benefit or creditors. 
h. If it is found that gratuities were offered or given by the Consultant or any agent or 

representative of the Consultant, to any officer or employee of the County 
 
 
ARTICLE IX – PAYMENT:  The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-

exceed without written authorization budget of $ 5,000.00.  Additional work, as authorized, will be 
performed on a Time and Materials basis per a mutually agreed upon fee between the County and the 
Consultant.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



         

5 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include original 
signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written. 
 
In return for the performance of the Contract by the Consultant, the County agrees to pay the amount of 
not more than      $ 5,000.00    including all applicable taxes. 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT  
NO. 1005.203/12-2010 

 
TREASURER’S WARRANT CONVERSION 

 
 
 

GILA COUNTY:      CONSULTANT: 
         
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                 ROBERT HEMING    
              
_________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors Consultant Signature 
  
       ________________________________________ 
       Print Name 
ATTEST:      
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Daisy Flores,

County Attorney

Submitted By: Bryan Chambers, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: contract begins upon acceptance and ends 175 days after acceptance 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment to Gila County Attorney's Office Workflow Automation & System Integration Contract No.

3528-301-102007 with the Ashley Brandon Company.

Background Information

In December 2007, Gila County awarded a contract to the Ashley Brandon Company to establish for the

Gila County Attorney’s Office for a workflow process automation and system integration project to

transform the Gila County Attorney’s Office into a web based nearly paperless work environment. The

project is nearly complete, however, during its construction it became apparent that it needed some

components and extra services that were not included in the original contract. These include program

modules for the Victims Department and the Diversion/Deferred/Bad Check Department. Additionally,

the project needs a provision to convert system data from the previous Judicial system to the new system,

and it needs the ability to automatically import data from the court’s new calendar system in XML

format. This amendment would provide for these additional modules and enhancements as well as

establish a firm project completion date with $200.00 per day penalties for failing to complete the project

on time.

Evaluation

Approval of this Amendment will allow the workflow automation and system integration project to be

more complete and better suit the functions of the County Attorney’s Office. Additionally, the additional

Diversion/Deferred/Bad Check module is necessary addition to the project because the current computer

software being used for the Diversion/Deferred/Bad Check program is insufficient to handle the needs of

the program on a long term basis. Failure to adopt these amendments would result in a program that

would not be able to adequately handle the current needs of the County Attorney’s Office. Like the

underlying contract, the additional costs for the Amendment will not come out of general revenue funds.

Rather they will be paid out County Attorney Cost of Prosecution Funds and Criminal Justice

Enhancement Funds.

Conclusion

The proposed amendment will allow the Gila County Attorney’s Office workflow process automation

and system integration project to better serve the needs of the County Attorney’s Office upon completion.

Recommendation

The Gila County Attorney recommends approval of the Amendment to the Gila County Attorney’s



The Gila County Attorney recommends approval of the Amendment to the Gila County Attorney’s

Office Workflow Automation and System Integration Contract with the Ashley Brandon Company.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Amendment (Phase II) to the Office Workflow Automation

and System Integration Contract No. 3528-301-102007 dated December 18, 2007, between the Gila

County Attorney's Office and the Ashley Brandon Company for enhancements to the Verdict System

(Phase I) in the amount of $60,820.   (Bryan Chambers)

Attachments

Link: Original Contract

Link: TABC Amendment























































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff

Submitted By: Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Oct. 1, 2010-Sept. 30, 2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

SubGrantee Agreement No.10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01 with Arizona Department of Homeland

Security

Background Information

The purpose of this project is to purchase the equipment and implement an automatic license plate reader

(ALPR) system. The system will be deployed in four (4) major crimes/interdiction/canine vehicles that

have the objective of detecting terrorism and other threats posed by persons utilizing vehicles.  ALPR

systems can automatically track vehicle movement, notify law enforcement of terrorism suspects and

other  threats to local, state and national security, and provide peer to peer investigative interoperability

amongst other user agencies. ALPR technology can capture and analyze as many as three thousand six

hundred (3600) vehicle license plates per minute, far more than even the largest of human resources in

the field could hope to achieve. Sustainability costs of this project beyond initial implementation consist

of equipment maintenance and providing for the computer interface to the national database, all of which

will be within the capability of the project's agency.

Evaluation

Grant Award 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01 in the amount of $38,500 will increase the agency's ability

to detect mobile threats to local, state and national security by utilizing state of the art technology (the

ALPR system) to read license plates. Once read, the license plates are then compared to a national

database for connections to terrorism and other critical hazards.

Conclusion

The goal of this project award is to increase our agency's ability to detect mobile threats to local, state

and national security by utilizing (the ALPR system) to read license plates.

Recommendation

The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests the Gila County Board of Supervisors' approval for this Grant

Award in the amount of $38,500 for the Automatic License Plate Reader Program.

Suggested Motion

Approval of SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01, a grant award between the

Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount

of $38,500 for the Automatic License Plate Reader Program. 



Attachments

Link: SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01 for ALPR Program



























    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff

Submitted By: Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011. 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Adam Shepherd/Claudia DalMolin 

Information

Request/Subject

SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-02 for $28,000 with Arizona Department of

Homeland Security

Background Information

This equipment will enable us to provide enhanced protection to the area and critical infrastructure of the

Roosevelt Dam. If a catastrophic event should occur we will be able to assist the downriver environment

to include the greater Phoenix Metropolitan area with inter-agency operations CBRN Search and Rescue

activities. The equipment will allow for Preventative and Search & Rescue operations in a contaminated

environment and sustain these operations. We will be able to conduct operations to assist in the detection

and removal of possible explosive devices/biological agents which could harm the infrastructure of Gila

County/Roosevelt Dam and the downstream populated areas of greater Phoenix, Maricopa & Pinal

County areas.

Evaluation

Grant Award #10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-02 in the amount of $28,000 will allow for preventative and

Search & Rescue Operations in a contaminated environment and sustain these operations. It will allow to

conduct operations to assist in the detection and removal of possible explosive devices which could harm

the infrastructure of Gila County/Roosevelt Dam and the downstream populated areas of greater

Phoenix, Maricopa & Pinal County areas.

Conclusion

The goal of this project award will allow for preventative and Search & Rescue Operations in a

contaminated environment and sustain these operations. It will allow to conduct operations to assist in

the detection and removal of possible explosive devices which could harm the infrastructure of Gila

County/Roosevelt Dam and the downstream populated areas of greater Phoenix, Maricopa, & Pinal

County areas.

Recommendation

The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests the Gila County Board of Supervisor's approval for this grant

award 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-02 for Project Title: Target Hardening of Dams,

Waterways/Infrastructure of Gila County.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Sub-Grantee Agreement No. 10-ADOS-HS GP-777305-02, a grant award between the Gila



Approval of Sub-Grantee Agreement No. 10-ADOS-HS GP-777305-02, a grant award between the Gila

County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona Department of Homeland Security in the amount of $28,000

for the target hardening of dams, waterways/infrastructure of Gila County for the period October 1,

2010, through September 30, 2011. 

Attachments

Link: SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-02



































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Chris Kell, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Division: Community Services Department

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: July 01, 2010 thru June 30, 2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 1 to Independent Contractor Agreement No. ACAA07012010 with Arizona Community Action

Association.

Background Information

The Utility, Repair, Replacement and Deposit Program (URRD), which is funded by abandoned utility deposits,

provides assistance to individuals in crisis situations with deposits for utility services and to make needed repairs

or replacements to existing utility-related appliances or water and sewer systems.  Assistance is limited to once in a

12-month period. To qualify, an individual must be a state resident and a U.S. citizen or qualified legal resident

and must meet one of the following crisis reasons: loss or reduction of income, an unexpected and unplanned

expense that caused a lack of resources or a condition that endangers the health and safety of the household and

meet 200% of federal income guidelines. 

Last year we received a total of $73,000 from this funding source of which $23,000 was the base allotment and

then an additional $50,000 was received because of need in Gila County. This year we have received the

$23,000 base allotment and if this amendment before you is approved, there will be an additional allotment of

$81,459 bringing the total for this funding source to $104,459 for this year.

Evaluation

This program has been a longstanding program within Gila County.  Last year the County helped 55 families

within Gila County.  With the additional funding we expect to help a total of 78 families this year.  It is important

for the Gila County Board of Supervisors to approve Amendment No.1 to existing Independent Contractor

Agreement No. ACAA07012010 to allocate additional funds in the amount of $81,459.89 to help eligible Gila

County families with utilities, repairs, replacement, and deposits.

Conclusion

Continuing to provide utilities, repairs, replacement, and deposit (URRD) services is beneficial to the residents of

Gila County. This request of the Board of Supervisors to sign Amendment No. 1 to Independent Contractor

Agreement No. ACAA070120101 is important so Gila County Community Services Division, Housing Section,

can continue to provide services to income-eligible residents of Gila County.

Recommendation

The Gila County Community Services Division, Housing Section, recommends the Board's approval of this

contract amendment.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Independent Contractor Agreement No. ACAA07012010 between the Gila



Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Independent Contractor Agreement No. ACAA07012010 between the Gila

County Community Services Division, Housing Section, and the Arizona Community Action Association to

allocate additional Utility, Repair, Replacement, and Deposit (URRD) funds in the amount of $81,459.89 to

continue providing service to eligible Gila County residents for the period July 01, 2010, through June 30, 2011.

Attachments

Link: Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ACAA07012010

Link: Contract No. ACAA07012010



















































































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Dawn Caldera,

Chief Deputy

Recorder

Submitted By: Dawn Caldera, Recorder's Office

Department: Recorder's Office

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 9/1/2010-6/30/16 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 2 to Memorandum of Understanding/Contract for Help America Vote Act

Background Information

The "Help America Vote Act (HAVA)" is the basis for both a federal and state effort to improve the

voting processes in America and Arizona.  Various grants have become available in order to accomplish

the goals of HAVA.  In May, 2005, the original Memorandum of Understanding/Contract for HAVA

was signed between the State of Arizona and Gila County.  That original contract provided financial

assistance to counties to address a number of projects relating to accessible voting systems, language

accessibility, physical accessibility to polling places, voter education, voter registration, poll and election

official worker training, telecommunications, and enhancements to the military and overseas voter

process.  Since that time, additional grant monies have become available to the counties.

Many projects for both the Elections Division and the Recorder's Office have been paid through these

grant monies.

The Board should be aware that the HAVA project currently pays for the voter registration system,

Power Profile, which the Recorder's Office currently uses.  In 2016 the cost reverts to the county and at

that point the Recorder's Office will have to budget for a voter registration system.

Evaluation

The original contract was to expire at the end of fiscal year 2007.  Amendment No. 1 to the contract

extended that date through Federal Fiscal Year 2010.  Amendment 2 provides for a further extension of

the contract through Federal Fiscal Year 2016.  This extension will provide an opportunity for all

counties, including Gila, to utilize available grant funds through FY2016.  

The extension coincides with the timing of Gila County becoming financially responsible for paying for

the cost of the voter registration system.

Conclusion

Approval of Amendment No. 2 will provide an opportunity for us to utilize available funding for various



Approval of Amendment No. 2 will provide an opportunity for us to utilize available funding for various

Recorder's Office and Election Department projects including: the voter registration system, handicap

accessibility equipment at polling places, laptops for voter lookup at polling locations and voting booth

replacement.  

There is no other change to the contract other than the extension of the time period to be covered by the

agreement.

Recommendation

It is recommended the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 2.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/Contract for Help

America Vote Act (HAVA) between Gila County and the Arizona Secretary of State to change the

termination date of the contract from Federal Fiscal Year 2010 to Federal Fiscal Year 2016. 

Attachments

Link: Amendment No. 2 to HAVA MOU

Link: Original HAVA Agreement & Amendment No. 1

















    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Community Development Division

Department: Community Development Division

Division: Community Development Administration

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Reappointment of Commissioners to the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Information

Reappointment for the following Gila County Planning and Zoning Commissioners:

District One:  Randy Slapnicka

District Two:  Lori Brown

                     Jay Spehar

                     Travis Williams

District Three: Mickie Nye

                       Jack Lrimore

Evaluation

The following members were appointed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors on February 6, 2007:

Reappoint Mark Fumusa to a 4 year term, January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010 (Rose Harper replaced Mark     Fumusa

and Randy Slapnicka has replaced Rose Harper)

Reappoint Lori Brown to a 4 year term, January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010

Reappoint Travis Williams to a 4 year term, January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010

Reappoint John Larimore to a 4 year term, January 1, 207 through December 31, 2010

Appoint Mickey Nye to a 4 year term, February 6, 2007 through December 31, 2010

The followning member was reappointed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors on February 13, 2007:

"Approval to reappoint Jay Spehar to the Planning and Zoning Commission as a representative of Supervisorial District Two

through December 31, 2010, a four year term in office."

Conclusion

Each Commissioner has been contacted and has agreed to volunteer their services for another four years.

Recommendation

The Division of Community Development recommends approval of the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commissioners as

listed as each one has agreed to volunteer their services for another four-year term.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the reappointment of members to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a four-year term from January 1, 2011,

through December 31, 2014, as follows:  District One:  Randy Slapnicka; District Two:  Lori Brown, Jay Spehar and Travis

Williams; and District Three:  Mickie Nye and Jack Larimore.



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Community Development Division

Department: Community Development Division

Division: Community Development Administration

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Reappointment of member to the Highway 60-70 Regional Design Review Board

Background Information

The Gila County Board of Supervisors appointed Patty Stallings Hetrick to the Hwy 60-70 Regional Design Review Board

for a term ending December 31, 2010. 

Evaluation

As per the approved amendment to the Gila County Zoning Ordinance, 104.5 Regional Design Review Guidelines, it reads as

follows:

"5.  At the time of initial appointment the govenrmental jurisdiction should appoint one member for two years and one

member for three years and one member for four years.  Therafter all appointments should be for four-year terms."

Conclusion

This is a request to reappoint Patty Stallings Hetrick to the Highway 60-70 Regional Design Review Board for another

four-year term as the individual has been contacted and has agreed to serve.

Recommendation

The Division of Community Development recommends that the individual as listed be appointed to the Highway 60-70

Regional Design Review Board.

Suggested Motion

Approval to reappoint Patty Stallings Hetrick to the Highway 60-70 Regional Design Review Board for an additional four-year

term for the period January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014.



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Community Development Division

Department: Community Development Division

Division: Community Development Administration

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Reappoint members to the Gila County Board of Adjustment.

Background Information

The Gila County Zoning Ordinance, 106 Board of Adjustment, 106.1 Board Structure and procedure states the following:

A.  There shall be one or more Boards of Adjustment, composed of not less than three nor more than five members each, one

of which shall be appointed in and shall have jurisdiction in each supervisorial district in which the Zoning Ordiance has been

applied.

B.  The members of each Board shall be appointed for staggered terms of four years each.

C.  The members shall be residents and taxpayers of the unincorporated area of the district from which appointed.

Evaluation

The following individuals have been contacted and agree to volunteer for another four years:  District Two:  Lori Brown and

Travis Williams; and District Three:  Jack Larimore

Conclusion

On July 11, 2006, the following individuals were appointed to the Gila County Board of Adjustment:  District Two:  Travis

Williams and Lori Brown; and District Three:  Jack Larimore

Recommendation

The Gila County Division of Community Development recommends approval of the listed individuals to the Gila County

Board of Adjustment.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the reappointment of members to the Gila County Board of Adjustment for a four-year term from January 1, 2011,

through December 31, 2014, as follows:  District Two:  Lori Brown and Travis Williams; and District Three:  John (Jack)

Larimore.



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Mike Pastor, Member, Board of Supervisors

Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Board of Supervisors-District 2

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 2

Presenter's

Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Appointment of representative to the Central Arizona Association of Governments Region V Council of

Governments.

Background Information

The Central Arizona Association of Governments (CAAG) is a Council of Governments that serves as

the regional planning agency for Pinal and Gila Counties. CAAG provides a regional forum for analysis,

discussion, and resolution of issues including areas of transportation, environmental quality, community

and economic development, job training, and social services. CAAG prides itself in finding new and

innovative solutions to regional issues. The face of Region V is rapidly changing, and CAAG is

committed to meeting the challenges of a growing area through partnership and collaborative effort.

Evaluation

Each year the Board of Supvisors appoints a Gila County representative to serve on the CAAG Regional

Council to serve for one calendar year.  District III Supervisor Shirley Dawson's term of office will end

on December 31, 2010; therefore, it is now time to elect a new CAAG Regional Council representative

for 2011.  District II Supervisor Michael Pastor has volunteered to represent Gila County on this

committee for 2011.

Conclusion

It is appropriate to place this issue before the Board of Supervisors at this time to appoint a CAAG

Regional Council Gila County representative for calendar year 2011.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors appoint Supervisor Michael Pastor as the Gila County

representative to serve on the CAAG Regional Council for calendar year 2011.

Suggested Motion

Approval to appoint Supervisor Michael Pastor as the Gila County representative on the Central Arizona

Association of Governments Region V Council of Governments for the calendar year 2011.



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board Vacancy Appointments

Background Information

ARS 48-803(B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration of a

term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation

At the East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board meeting of October 11, 2010, the governing board

accepted the resignation of Clerk of the Board, Ms. Ardith Hogan, effective November 30, 2010 and

agreed Bobbie L. Pierce be appointed to complete Ms. Hogan's term of office which expires 12/31/2012.

At the same meeting, the governing board also agreed that Dan Haapala should be appointed to complete

the term of deceased board member, Jim Cambier which also expires 12/31/2012. 

Conclusion

Messrs Pierce and Haapala have agreed to serve out the terms of the previous board members.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the resignation of Ardith Hogan and the

death of Jim Cambier and approve the new governing board member appointments as submitted.

Suggested Motion

Acknowledgement of the resignation of Ms. Ardith Hogan from the East Verde Park Fire District

governing board and the appointment of Mr. Bobbie L. Pierce to complete the term of Ms. Hogan, which

expires 12/31/2012, and acknowledgement of the death of East Verde Park Fire District governing board

member Jim Cambier and the appointment of Mr. Dan Haapala to complete the term of Mr. Cambier,

which expires 12/31/2012.

Attachments

Link: ARS 48-803

Link: East Verde Park Fire Board 10-11-10 Meeting Minutes



48-803. District administered by a district board 

B. If a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration of a term, the remaining 

board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member. If the entire board 

resigns or for any reason cannot fulfill its duties, the board of supervisors shall appoint an 

administrator to administer the district with the same duties and obligations of the elected board. 

If the board of supervisors fails to appoint an administrator within thirty days, a special election 

shall be held to fill the vacancies on the fire district board. 



FB010-11-10 meeting minutes11/30/2010 

East Verde Park Fire District Board 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Monday, October 11, 2010 

 
Call to Order 
 Dan Haapala called to order the regular meeting of the East Verde Park 
Fire District Board at 1:14 pm, Monday, October 11, 2010. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 The following members were present Dan Haapala, Ardith Hogan, Mary 
Cambier, Matalyn Gardner.  Member of the public, Bobbie Pierce was present. 
 
Approval of minutes from last meeting 
 The board reviewed the meeting minutes from the Monday, September 
13, 2010 meeting.  Matalyn Gardner moved the minutes be accepted as 
presented.  Mary Cambier seconded. Motion approved.  
  
Committee Reports 
 
 Financial Report - Mary Cambier reported we received $525.09 last 
month from 2009 property taxes, and $5348.31 from 2010 property taxes.  We 
received $37.89 interest for a total of $5911.29. Check cleared for $70.67 for pay 
phone.   Account balance is $15,477.13.   
Ardith Hogan motioned we accept the financial report as presented. Matalyn 
Gardner seconded. Motion passed. 
 
Correspondence 
 Mary Cambier brought the new Arizona Open Meeting law document.  
She has read the document and wants the board to know that this law does 
pertain to us.  Dan Haapala offered to contact the Gila County Attorney’s office to 
request a training session at a future meeting.   
 
 Mary Cambier received the statement and questionnaire for the yearly 
AFDA membership through 9/30/11.  Madalyn Gardner moved that we join AFDA 
for this year. Ardith Hogan seconded.   Motion approved.  Dan Haapala will 
complete the questionnaire and Mary will send it in with a check for the dues.   
    
 
Arizona Legislative Updates Regarding Fire Board Districts 
 No report   
 
 
Comments from Board members  
 None 



FB010-11-10 meeting minutes11/30/2010 

  
 
New Business 
 1.  Discussion regarding the appointment of two candidates seeking 
a board seat by the Gila County Board of Supervisors and when those 
appointments become official.  Public Comments welcome on this topic.  
Dan contacted Dave Rogers at the Gila County Elections Board to find out when 
the election of the new board members, Lee Accacia and Craig Green will be 
effective.  Dave told him according to AZ state law; the new board member 
appointments are effective on the first meeting of the first month following 
elections.  This means the new members elections will be effective at the 
December board meeting.  
 
 2. Acceptance, with regret, the resignation of Clerk of the Board, 
Ardith Hogan, effective November 30, 2010. Discussion/possible action 
regarding her replacement.  Public Comments welcome on the topic.  Dan 
contacted Dave Rogers at the Gila County Elections Board and Dave told him 
according to AZ state law; the new board member appointments are effective on 
the first meeting of the first month following elections.  This means the new 
members will be on board at the December board meeting. Lee Accacia 
contacted Bobbie Pierce and Bobbie agreed to fill the remainder of Ardith 
Hogan’s term. 
 Dan stated that the board needs to vote to request the Gila County Board 
of Elections appoint Bobbie L. Pierce to replace Ardith Hogan following her 
resignation 11/30.  Mary Cambier moved to ask the board.  Ardith Hogan 
seconded.  Motion approved.  Ardith will send a letter to the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors elections department. 
 
 3. Discussion/possible action concerning the replacement of 
deceased board member, Jim Cambier.  Public Comments welcome on the 
topic. 
Dan contacted Lee and Craig, and they wanted someone with board experience 
to take Jim’s.  The board opened nominations.  Madelyn Gardner stated that she 
wished to be off the board due to other obligations.  Dan Haapala felt he could 
deal with the board responsibilities for the remainder of Jim’s term. 
Mary Cambier moved to request the board of supervisors to replace Jim on the 
board for the remainder of his term, effective Dec 1, 2010 Ardith Hogan 
seconded.  Dan Haapala excused himself from the vote.  No discussion. Motion 
passed.   
 
Mary asked about swearing in the new members of the board.  Madelyn stated 
that only a notary needed to be present.  Ardith will fill out the notary form and 
there will be a notary at the December board meeting.   
   
 
 
 



FB010-11-10 meeting minutes11/30/2010 

Unfinished Business 
 1. Response from the Payson Fire Department regarding solar panel 
policy.   Marti Demasi responded to Dan’s questions regarding solar panels.  
Marti stated that at this time, PFD won’t be addressing specific to the dangers 
that are posted on the internet.  He feels that the PFD will not interrupt service or 
refuse to fight a fire in our district because a house has solar panels.  He feels 
that his staff is well equipped to handle any situation. 
 
 2. Bulletin board design discussion/action for the Jim Cambier 
memorial. 
The board discussed possible choices for the bulletin boards that will be placed 
in the Jim Cambier memorial wall.  The memorial will be dedicated at the semi-
annual EVP HOA meeting on October 16.  We will have two spaces available for 
a bulletin board. Madelyn gave a short description of the design proposed by Don 
Brooks, resident who designed the memorial.  She described some kind of metal 
insert and a corkboard wall with a Plexiglas cover. Mary Cambier stated that the 
wall is cement and anything that we use will need to be waterproof.  Madelyn 
suggest that we have a metal box custom made with some kind of closure on the 
front.  After further discussion, it was decided that a metal box in each space with 
a Plexiglas cover on the front would be the best choice.  Dan Haapala offered to 
call a couple of sheet metal shops and ask them to submit bids. 
 
 
Future Agenda items to be Discussed 
 1. Dan Haapala will report on a date for a training session given by the 
Gila County Attorney’s office to educate the board on the new Arizona Open 
Meeting law.   
  
 2. Dan Haapala will submit bids from sheet metal shops for new bulletin 
boards. 
 
Public Comment 
  
 Adjournment 
 Meeting was adjourned at 1:53 pm. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Ardith  Hogan, Clerk 



    Item #:  5- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Reporting Period: BOS Meeting Minutes for June 22, 2010

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy

Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Clerk of

the Board of Supervisors

Information

Subject

BOS Meeting Minutes for June 22, 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the June 22, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments

Link: BOS 06-22-10 Meeting Minutes



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 22, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk; Marian 
Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County 
Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Regular Session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Berthan DeNero led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Charles Willcox of Hospice Compassus in 
Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Motion to convene as the Gila County Library District.  
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative Gila County Library 
District budget for fiscal year 2010-2011.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.  Jacque 
Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that page 22 of the Gila 
County Proposed Budget lists the Library District budget.  The Library District 
tax rate is proposed to remain the same at $.20, which will generate 
$1,572,058 for assistance to the libraries throughout Gila County.  It is 
anticipated that the Library District will also bring in $140,000 in grants, 
which includes the regular $23,000 State Grants-In-Aid; a Library Services and 
Technology grant for a webpage; notification has been received of a First Things 
First grant; a BTOP1 grant, which is federal stimulus money; and there is the 
potential within a week or two to know if the Library District will receive a 
BTOP2 grant for placing a computer in every library and provide training to 
promote job retraining such as is currently offered at the County’s One-Stop 
location.  The total Library District budget proposed for adoption is 



2 

$1,712,058.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted the tentative Gila County Library 
District budget for fiscal year 2010-2011 in the amount of $1,712,058.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
Item 3 - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2010-2011 
fiscal year budget for Gila County.   
 
John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk, passed out a report entitled 
“Government Finance for Dummies” and gave a PowerPoint presentation.  He 
began by first discussing government finance starting with the State of Arizona.  
He quoted Arizona Governor Brewer in her transmittal letter when she 
submitted her executive budget to the Legislature as follows: “For Arizona, the 
middle of the last decade was a period of unprecedented growth and prosperity.  
With increased revenue streams, our State wisely and correctly lowered 
taxes…Arizona also increased services in every area of State 
government…” Mr. Nelson stated that in his opinion this is exactly what is 
wrong with government and why this State and others are in the trouble they 
are in today.  He stated, “I think as you look at government services…we need 
to take a critical look at what government does, how we do it and who we serve.  
It’s my opinion that as we look at government services, we are not ‘value added’ 
to the economy,” and he cited examples such as producing copper and turning 
raw materials into a finished product as being ‘value added’ to the economy.  
He stated, “Taking a criminal, paying for his indigent defense, convicting him, 
putting him in prison and maintaining that prison is not ‘value added’ to the 
economy.  It is ‘value added’ to society, but not to the economy.  I think as we 
go through our budget process and think about government, we have to keep 
that in mind.”  In a report entitled “Growth Remains Slow until FY 2011” 
received from the Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC), Mr. Nelson 
explained that as the State was experiencing rapid expansion of its economy 
and revenue streams, it was decreasing taxes instead of maintaining a stable 
tax policy.  With the declining economy, Mr. Nelson believes that now is the 
time government should be cutting taxes, not increasing them.  What Mr. 
Nelson finds very disturbing is that when revenues were good, the State was 
expanding programs, particularly State government, and now that the economy 
is down, they are cutting the budgets for services that are needed most, 
particularly Child Protective Services, School Resource Officers and cutting 
revenues to Gila Community College so it is unable to provide retraining 
courses for people who have just lost their jobs.  The State is also talking about 
making cuts in AHCCCS (Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System).  Mr. 
Nelson believes the government should be reducing taxes and increasing 
services, but it is doing just the opposite.  Mr. Nelson believes it should be 
about smaller and less intrusive government; however, the State says it is 
doing that, but instead is shifting the costs to other entities such as the 



3 

counties.  He cited the example of Senate Bill (SB) 1070 (the Support Our Law 
Enforcement and Safe Neighborhoods Act), an unfunded mandate from the 
State to the counties, and which also amounts to more government.  
Supervisor Dawson stated that with SB1070 sitting there, people and 
businesses are not going to come to Arizona.  She believes the picture for 
Arizona and its government is worse than the projection.  Mr. Nelson 
wholeheartedly agreed and added that what we continually hear from state and 
federal government leaders is that they cannot be held accountable for the 
Lehmann Brothers surprise, the collapse in the housing market, the credit 
market freezing up, etc. because they never saw it coming, so don’t blame 
them.  Mr. Nelson stated, “I’m sorry, but I do think they are accountable and 
we should hold them accountable.”  The next item presented was a chart 
entitled, “Real Retail Sales U.S., Percent Changed Year Ago, 1973-2008” 
received from Elliot D. Pollack & Company with the source as the Federal 
Reserve.  This chart showed the past 5 recession periods including the Oil 
Embargo in 1974-75; stagflation involving the Federal Reserve in 1980-82; 
savings and loan companies crashing in 1990; the 9-1-1 disaster; and the 
current Lehmann Brothers bankruptcy, the crash of the housing market and 
credit issues.  The government says they never saw any of these things coming 
and were surprised.  Mr. Nelson stated, “I think it’s time we stop hiding behind 
this ‘we’re surprised.’  Government needs to be prepared for any emergencies 
that arise and it should be part of a long-term planning process while keeping 
in mind that taxes are not ‘value added’ to the economy.”  Mr. Nelson then 
moved on to the budgeting process including the Arizona budget requirements, 
the definition of tentative budget and the budget timeline for this year.  He 
stated that since there always seems to be some confusion on these items, he 
wanted to define them again.  The State of Arizona budgeting process requires 
that counties account and budget for all funds including any potential 
revenues that may be available for the upcoming year.  The estimated fund 
balance plus the estimated (potential) revenues equals the total budget.  If the 
County receives any potential funds that were not accounted for, by law the 
County cannot spend those funds.  He reviewed last year’s fiscal budget, which 
was $100,298,479 with estimated expenditures of $61,312,300 so the 
carryover fund balance is estimated at $32 million.  Those funds are carried 
forward to the next fiscal year budget for the purpose of being able to continue 
to fund grants.  The federal grant year is October 1st, so the County basically 
has 1 quarter of the federal grants that have to be carried over.   He requested 
that for the upcoming fiscal year (FY) 2010-2011 the Board adopt a tentative 
budget of $104,308,853.  He noted that this budget, however, is not a spending 
plan.  Just because some funds are appropriated, does not mean they are 
going to be spent.  The County has established a $5 million cash flow reserve to 
fund the County until the tax receipts are received in November.  Mr. Nelson 
explained that adopting the tentative budget does the following:  1) it allows for 
the publication of the proposed budget in the newspapers and on the County 
website; 2) it allows for the publication of a Truth in Taxation (TNT) notice of 
any proposed tax increase; 3) it sets a time for a public hearing in which the 



4 

taxpayers can attend and discuss the budget with the Board before it is 
adopted; 4) it sets an upper expenditure limitation or a maximum spending 
level; and 5) it sets the upper property tax levy.  The tentative budget does not 
do the following:  1) it does not establish a final budget; 2) it does not 
appropriate funds; and 3) it does not set a property tax levy or property tax 
rate.  With the adoption of the tentative budget, the Board can still make 
changes, reduce the total amount, and reallocate funds; they cannot, however, 
exceed the expenditure limitation.  The next item presented was the time line 
for the budget.  The adoption of the tentative budget set for today sets the 
upper spending limit and the upper property tax levy.  The adoption of the final 
budget set for July 20, 2010, finalizes the budget (after the public hearing) and 
finalizes the property tax levy.  Then at the Board meeting scheduled for 
August 16, 2010, the Board will set the property tax rate for all taxing 
jurisdictions, which is a County clerical process only.  Mr. Nelson also 
explained that taxpayers wishing to protest taxes and tax rates of these special 
districts, cities and towns should attend those entities’ board meetings, which 
is when the rates are being set.  The Board of Supervisors does not have any 
authority to change those rates once they are established by the boards of the 
special districts, cities and towns.  Supervisor Dawson noted that she and 
possibly other Board members would be attending the National Association of 
Counties convention in Nevada so she would not be able to attend the Board 
meeting for the adoption of the final budget set for July 20th.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that State law requires the budget be adopted the third Monday in July 
or before so an earlier Board meeting date could be set that will allow for the 
required publications before the adoption of the final budget.  Mr. Nelson then 
continued on with a review of the total tentative budget for FY 2009-2010, 
2010-2011 and the changes.  The General Fund will increase by $1,574,657; 
Special Revenue will increase by $4,141,698; Capital Projects will decrease by 
($1,692,459); Permanent Funds will decrease by ($300,934); and Debt Service 
will increase by $287,410 for a total budget increase of $4,010,373.  Within the 
General Fund changes for FY 2011, Mr. Nelson explained that significant 
increases will include the following:  expenses for a primary and general 
election plus redistricting costs--$400,000; replacement of the Treasurer’s 
software system--$125,000; operating costs for the new 40-bed Women’s jail--
$400,000; jail evidence storage and management--$115,000; health insurance 
costs increased significantly, which the County will partially absorb in the 
amount of $375,000, however, co-pays for both doctors and prescriptions were 
increased for employees along with an increase in deductibles; Restoration to 
Competency used to be shared equally between the State and counties, but has 
now been 100% passed to the counties--$300,000; AHCCCS/ALTCS (Arizona 
Health Care Cost Containment System & Arizona Long Term Care System), 
which is the County’s mandated cost from the State for the indigent healthcare 
program--$200,000; increase contingency to $1,400,000 because of the 
possibility of upcoming costs such as from SB1070 and others--$400,000; and 
decrease in the Rainy-Day Fund in order to balance the budget--($750,000) for 
a total increase in the General Fund of $1,565,000.  The Rainy-Day Fund is 



5 

currently at $5M and it is projected that $1.8M will need to be used to balance 
the budget leaving a total of $3.2M.  He reiterated that the restoration to 
competency increase and the AHCCCS/ALTCS increase are the result of the 
State Legislature passing those increases on to the counties.  The next 
recommendations made by Mr. Nelson included General Fund new positions.  
For the new 40-bed women’s jail dorm he recommended 1 detention nurse, 1 
detention sergeant and 4 detention officers.  For the new evidence storage 
management, he recommended 1 deputy sheriff.  Also recommended were 2 
school resource officers that the County will fund due to reduced funding from 
the State.  The last recommendation is per an Internal Revenue Service 
requirement that funding for some consultants be changed to salaries and 
wages as employees.  Mr. Nelson stated that when he brings the final budget 
adoption to the Board, he will be asking the Board to approve a detailed list of 
all authorized positions and the funding sources for same.  In reference to 
Special Revenue Funds, he advised that there are approximately 230 grants 
and 3 significant ones will increase in FY 2011 by $4,126,003, which includes 
federal funds for the Tonto Creek Bridge in the amount of $2,475,458 for the 
concept and design; a grant in the amount of $599,663 for the Young 512 
Road; and a transportation enhancement grant in the amount of $1,050,882 
from the State to complete the Six Shooter Canyon sidewalks from the Forest 
Service boundary to Remington Drive connecting into the existing sidewalks 
there.  Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the sidewalk 
project has a County-required match of 5.7%, which will be paid with County’s 
half-cent funds.  At this time a temporary recess was called due to recording 
issues.  Mr. Nelson then resumed the meeting by making the following policy 
recommendations for FY 2011:  1) establish a reserve of $2 million for future 
capital needs; 2) no guaranteed funding for community agencies including the 
two big ones being the Northern and Southern Gila County Economic 
Development Corporations; 3) continue support for Gila Community College in 
the amount of $300,000 because of State cuts; 4) court security in the amount 
of $100,000; 5) establish 2 personal days off for all permanent employees (for 
FY 2011 only) (1 in the first 6 months and 1 in the second 6 months) because 
there will be no employee raises; 6) continue the120-day hiring freeze; and 7) 
no general salary increases.   Mr. Nelson gave a brief update on the Public 
Sector Personnel Consultants survey based on market studies that was done 
for all County positions; however, because of the State starting to experience 
shortfalls in revenue, 2-1/2 years ago a freeze in pay increases was 
implemented.  Mr. Nelson stated that because of all the changes in the 
County’s organization and the market changes, he does not believe the study is 
valid anymore.  He believes inequities have developed within the County’s pay 
plan and an additional workload has been placed on personnel due to the120-
day hiring freeze.  Mr. Nelson stated that more and more employee issues are 
arising, which he believes are the result of the two issues mentioned above and 
will have to be addressed in the near future.  The Board then held a discussion 
on the Public Sector personnel study with Supervisor Dawson questioning Mr. 
Nelson’s comments about the study no longer being valid.  Mr. Nelson 



6 

explained, “I don’t think Public Sector is invalid.  I think the study that was 
done 2-1/2 years ago based on market conditions that were done 2-1/2 years 
ago, jobs that were being done 2-1/2 years ago, is no longer valid in where we 
are right now.  But Public Sector, as an organization, is somebody that can do 
that for us I think is totally valid.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated what she 
thought Mr. Nelson was stating was that the Public Sector study is the best 
we’ve got.  It may not be valid and we’re going to have to take a look at it.  Mr. 
Nelson stated, “What I was proposing is that we take a look at this issue, we 
deal with this issue, but I don’t think what happened 2-1/2 years ago is the 
proper starting point.  I think we need a brand new starting point to deal with 
what our employees are doing today.  Are they adequately paid for that 
compared to their piers and what is the market out there?  The market is 
obviously different than it was 2 years go and during this hiring freeze other 
things have been happening in our organization.  Job duties have significantly 
changed.  That’s why I would recommend that we take a look at this and deal 
with this issue, but I don’t see that what was done 2-1/2 years ago is the 
starting point.”  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I don’t have a problem with the 
fact that the market today is not the market that was there 2-1/2 years ago.   I 
don’t have a problem with the fact that in the hiring process we have 
consolidated some jobs and changed job descriptions and that needs to be 
presented on an individual basis, but I’ll be danged if I want to see this Board 
of Supervisors (BOS) or our personnel department going back to a practice that 
was ‘let’s see if we can come up with the right vocabulary to describe a job and 
get it funded’ whether it’s in the courts or in the BOS wing of the County.  
That’s where I was most aware of discrepancies and unfairness when we came 
on this Board and I have not had employees tell me that they feel we 
discriminate at this point in who gets hired or in what job level they are hired 
at because we do not follow Public Sector.  We haven’t, as other counties and 
cities, asked our employees to take a day off without pay or had a 15-20% cut 
in our staff.  So I understand Public Sector has room for improvement, but I 
don’t see throwing it out in any sense of the word.  I certainly want the fairness 
in job descriptions and job hiring to continue as it has since we implemented 
Public Sector.  We gave a period of time for appeals and we paid for the appeal 
process in putting people on the steps where Public Sector and the 
administrative persons agreed upon and I’ll fight hard to keep us moving 
forward with this in a very financially difficult time.”  Mr. Nelson replied that he 
believes that the product from Public Sector 2-1/2 years ago needs to be 
replaced with a new Public Sector product.  Chairman Pastor stated that he 
has received comments from employees that the Public Sector study needs to 
be reviewed and he believes Mr. Nelson was suggesting that the County begin 
the process of looking at the structure and review the process and see if it 
needs to be fine-tuned.  Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, 
stated that the Public Sector study was conducted in 2005 and the last 2-1/2 
to 3 years have been frozen in time, yet the economy has not frozen.  So it’s 
that inequity or perceived inequity that the County needs to be looking at.  Mr. 
Nelson concluded by stating that he is not here with a recommendation today; 



7 

however, he does believe it’s an issue that’s going to accelerate and it needs to 
be dealt with.  Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that he and Mr. Nelson 
had previously discussed the issue and it was his opinion that it be left in the 
recommendation as it is now with the thought that using Public Sector’s work 
as the foundation and base work, he sees himself bringing that up to the 
conditions of today.  Supervisor Dawson recommended leaving the core concept 
as it is and look at job assignments and if it becomes necessary to bring them 
to the Board for revision, “So be it, but we still have a core base.”  Vice-
Chairman Martin stated that she believes the County has the expertise on 
board to take a look at the equity and parity issues and bring those 
recommendations back to the Board.  She was delighted that Mr. Nelson 
brought this issue to the attention of the Board because she believes he is 
right.  Mr. Nelson continued his presentation on the property tax levy.  What he 
proposed was a property tax levy from last year’s $22,143,197 to $23,818,540 
for FY 2011.  He stated that the increase is based on a recommendation of a 
voter approved 2% increase on property taxes on all existing properties in the 
amount of $468,973 and taxing new construction at $1,181,350, plus allowing 
for a 2% increase on new construction.  He again reviewed the use of the 
Property Tax Levy increase as was presented earlier.  He also explained that 
there has been a decrease in sales tax for the County and the State will no 
longer share the State lottery money with the County.  Mr. Nelson then 
explained how property taxes are calculated for a $100,000 home.  The 
assessed value of $100,000 times the assessment ratio of 10% equals $10,000, 
which is divided by 100, which is $100.  The $100 times the recommended tax 
rate of $4.19/per $100 of assessed valuation, would equal $419.00 for the 
taxes on a $100,000 home.  The following items Mr. Nelson presented were 3 
charts.  The first chart showed Gila County’s Primary Tax Rate beginning with 
FY 2004, 2005 and 2006 all with a tax rate of $4.41, FY 2007 at $4.35, FY 
2008 at $4.11, FY 2009 at $3.92, FY 2010 at $3.75 to a proposed primary tax 
rate of $4.19 for FY 2011.  The second chart was Gila County’s Primary 
Property Tax Average for a $100,000 home from FY 2006 through FY 2011.   
The third chart consisted of 2 charts together showing the Gila County Primary 
Tax Rate and Gila County Primary Property Tax Average for a $100,000 Home 
for FY 2006-2011.  He noted that the County’s property taxes have not been 
keeping up with inflation.  Mr. Nelson stated that his preferred 
recommendation would have been to reduce taxes; however, because of the 
costs being passed down to the County from the State that is not possible.  Mr. 
Nelson then explained the “TNT” (truth in taxation) notice.  In compliance with 
Arizona Revised Statutes ¶42-17107, Gila County is notifying its property 
taxpayers of Gila County’s intention to raise its primary property taxes over 
last year’s level.  Gila County is proposing an increase in primary property 
taxes of $493,993 or 2%.  For example, the proposed tax increase will cause 
Gila County’s primary property taxes on a $100,000 home to increase from 
$410.31 (total taxes that would be owed without the proposed tax increase) to 
$419.00 (total proposed taxes including the tax increase).  In conclusion, Mr. 
Nelson presented a chart showing the combined tax rates for FY 2010 for all 



8 

the counties in Arizona beginning with the lowest at $2.86 in Greenlee County 
to the highest of $17.54 for Pima County.  Gila County’s combined tax rate is 
$10.41, which Mr. Nelson explained is the county’s tax rate of $3.75 added to 
the taxes from all the special districts, cities and towns in the amount of $6.66 
for a total of $10.41.  Mr. Nelson recommended that the Board adopt the 
tentative budget as presented.  Each supervisor thanked Mr. Nelson and staff 
for the work on the budget.  Supervisor Dawson stated that she would be 
talking more with Mr. Nelson about further reduction of costs because of the 
effects of the tough economy on the residents of Gila County, particularly the 
elderly.  Vice-Chairman Martin also noted the “storm clouds” that may 
continue to come from the state.  She stated, “I think that part of what we are 
doing is balancing as best we can, continuing to provide the services as well as 
absorb the hits we are getting from the State and I think we will continue to get 
hits from the state.”  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted the tentative 2010-2011 
fiscal year budget for Gila County as presented in the amount of $104,308,853.  
Supervisor Dawson stated, “I really plan that the July budget will be different 
than what we are adopting.”   
 
Item 4 – Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement 
of Request for Sealed Bids No. 051410-1 - VHF Radio Equipment and 
Installation for the Gila County Sheriff Detention Bureau.   
 
Adam Shepherd, Undersheriff, stated that in the jails the equipment has 
become quite outdated because the emphasis has been on the extensive 
communication system for the outside patrol.  The jail equipment is so 
outdated that it cannot be connected to the new system.  Then new 
construction is ongoing, which will increase the Sheriff’s Office level of officers 
that are outside the facility so to improve the safety and security for the 
officers, the jail equipment must be updated and also to increase the range of 
the current system because right now only portables are used.  Also being 
added will be an emergency message system so if an officer cannot 
communicate through their radio all they will have to do is push a button to let 
the communications center know they are having trouble.  This equipment will 
be funded with Criminal Justice Enhancement Funds and with commissary so 
no extra funds are being requested.   Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 051410-1 - VHF Radio Equipment 
and Installation for the Gila County Sheriff Detention Bureau.   
 
Item 5 – Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement 
of Request for Sealed Bids No. 052510-1 for the Public Works Complex 
Privacy Wall, Globe, Arizona.  
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that when the Public 
Works Complex project began, meetings were held with the neighbors and one 



9 

of the promises he made to them was that if funds became available, 
discussions would be held about constructing a wall that would give them 
privacy from the County’s facilities.  Mr. Stratton showed the Board a photo of 
the area boundaries of the County property.  He recommended that the Board 
authorize the advertisement for sealed bids to build 700 feet of 6-foot privacy 
walls starting at the north end of the Administration Building next to the 
Bearup property southward and then east along the southerly boundary of the 
Bearup property and then north up to the Teague property and then east along 
the boundary of the Keller property, which the County purchased.  The 6-foot 
wall would be colored smooth block with the top 2 courses being a split-faced 
block and the columns would be split-faced so it would be aesthetically 
pleasing to the neighbors as well as giving them privacy.  Additionally in this 
bid there would be a set of stairs, which would go from the Administration 
Building up to the Facilities Building to allow easier interaction between 
County staff.  There is also a set of stairs between the Facilities Building and 
the Keller property where the County’s construction trailer currently sits, 
which would allow Facilities personnel to park in that area and then enter and 
exit their building.  Once these facilities are all completed, in the future Mr. 
Stratton is anticipating a roadway project on Russell Road that would widen 
the road and allow for a left turn lane to go to the landfill and also a 
deceleration lane to go onto Besich Boulevard.  In that road project, the County 
anticipates continuing the privacy wall along the eastern boundary of the 
County’s property satisfying the promise to the citizens in that area.  The wall 
will be funded with HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) monies rather than 
the bond project monies.  Chairman Pastor inquired about the property behind 
the Facilities Building at the corner where the private property owners pull into 
their property.  Mr. Stratton replied that the property there will remain open.  
The County intends to bring the wall up to the location where the chain link 
fence ends right now and stop there.  Discussions have been held with both 
property owners as to the County’s intentions and they are both satisfied.  The 
County will come approximately 2 feet off of the property line to allow them, 
after the wall is constructed, to take down their fencing.  Chairman Pastor 
noted on the map that right now where those property owners come into their 
property, they are cutting through the corner of County property and he 
wanted to make Mr. Stratton aware of same.  Mr. Stratton affirmed that 
property owners are cutting through the corner of County property, but that’s 
the only access for them right now.  If the County moved their access to 
another area (as shown on the map) it would be dangerous for the owners.  
Chairman Pastor stated that he reviewed that area and wondered if that was 
going to be a problem.  Mr. Stratton stated that he believes the way it is 
situated right now is the safest solution for everyone.  Supervisor Dawson 
wanted County staff to look at the wall by the apartments built behind Wendy’s 
restaurant and check into who built that wall because it is a 6-foot wall that 
was built without adequate foundation.  Mr. Stratton stated that the County is 
using an ADOT (Arizona Department of Transportation) spec wall for this 
project.  It has a wide footing with J-bar so it’s actually being built like a 



10 

retaining wall rather than just a privacy wall.  In the future if there is any soil 
or sediment that comes up against either side of the wall, it should be able to 
be maintained.  Chairman Pastor inquired that when the construction begins, 
will the contractor notify the private owners that there may be some 
infringement as far as doing the work and a problem with dust?  Mr. Stratton 
replied that the property owners will be notified and the County is staying on 
the contractors as far as dust control by monitoring same and that is 
something that has to be maintained by the contractors through water trucks 
or whatever is necessary.  The schedule for this project is to advertise request 
for bids on June 23 and 30, 2010, and there will be a walk-through of the 
project on July 1, 2010, with questions being taken until July 2, 2010.  Any 
final addendums will be sent out on July 6, 2010, and the bid due dates are 
July 14, 2010.  It is hoped the project can be awarded in mid-to-late July.  It is 
approximately a 60-day project and the engineer’s estimate is in the $70,000 
range; however, that is dependent on the availability of the colored block.  
Chairman Pastor stated that on the north side of the Administration Building 
there is an old cement wall and inquired if there was any intent to modify that 
wall or if it would remain there as is.  Mr. Stratton replied that at this time, 
that wall will be left the way it is.  Mr. Stratton would like to see all of the 
facilities completed and then he will address the situation on Michigan and 
Russell Roads as there are several options available.  Because at times it is a 
very large creek, there needs to be some type of structure there to control the 
drainage.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Request for 
Sealed Bids No. 052510-1 for the Public Works Complex Privacy Wall, Globe, 
Arizona. 
 
Item 6 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
A. Approval to ratify the Chairman’s signature on an application 

submitted by Albert Keehn of Sportsman’s Chalet to temporarily 
extend the premises where liquor is served on June 19, 2010. (All Gila 
County requirements were met prior to the event. 
 

B. Approval of an Order to cancel precinct elections and appoint precinct 
committeemen who have filed nominating petitions. 
 

C. Authorization of the Chairman’s signature on Amendment No. 2 to 
Contract No. 121707-1 for SBS polymer chip seal oil to extend the 
Contract period to June 13, 2010, per Section 3.2 of the Contract. 
 

D. Approval to adopt Resolution No.10-06-06 authorizing the Gila County    
Probation Department’s participation in the FY 2010-2011 Family 
Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court, 
Administrative Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division, 
and certifying that a matching fund requirement of $2,303 for the 



11 

Program will be provided by the County.   (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
 

E. Acknowledging the resignation of Paula Brandt from the Solitude Trails   
Water Improvement District Governing Board and the appointment of  
Jim Robertson to said Board to complete Ms. Brandt’s term which 
expires 12/31/2012; and acknowledging the resignation of Terry 
Schleizer from the Pine/Strawberry Fire District Governing Board and 
the appointment of David J. Burkhart to said Board to complete Ms. 
Schleizer’s term which expires 12/31/2010. 
 

F. Approval of a request by the Gila County Sheriff’s Reserve Posse to use 
the Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for its annual Sweetheart Dance to 
be held on February 12, 2011, with a request to waive fees. 
 

G. Approval of April 20, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.  
                                 

H. Approval of the May 2010 monthly departmental activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable.  (A copy of the report is on 
file in the Clerk of the Board Department.) 
 

I. Approval of personnel reports/actions for the week of June 22, 2010.  
 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Margie Velasquez – School Superintendent – Accounting Clerk – 

06/18/10 – General Fund – DOH 03/06/06 - Resigned 
Hires to County Service: 
2. Ray Tarango – Globe Constable #312 – Part Time Deputy Constable – 

06/28/10 – General Fund – Replacing Dawn VanHassel 
3. Michael Lorka – Probation – Part Time Juvenile Detention Officer – 

07/19/10 - General Fund – Replacing Charles Schreck 
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
4. Larry Dooly – Public Works Facilities Management – Temporary Building 

Maintenance Technician - 06/14/10 – Facilities Management Fund 
5. Jace Rampelotto – Public Works Facilities Management – Temporary 

Building Maintenance Technician – 06/08/10 – Facilities Management 
Fund 

6. Rachel Wright – Clerk of Superior Court – Temporary Court Clerk – 
06/21/10 - General Fund 

Position Review: 
7. Michael Snively – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 06/22/10 – 

From Payson Safe Schools Fund – To Adult Probation Service Fees Fund 
8. Stacie Allison – Finance – Accountant – 06/21/10 - General Fund – 

Received Bachelors Degree 
Request Permission to Post: 



12 

9. Health and Community Services – Community Service Worker – Vacated 
by Frances Ramirez 

10. Public Works/Automotive Equipment Maintenance – Automotive 
 Service Worker – Vacated by Kevin Moran 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
11. Catherine Hines - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 06/21/10 - 

 General Fund – Replacing Marci Sanders 
12. Edward Morgan - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/05/10 - General 

 Fund – Replacing Colten White 
End Probationary Period: 
13. Layne Johnson - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 06/21/10 - General 

 Fund 
 

J. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the week of June 
22, 2010.  (separate handout) 

 
$1,205,899.78 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 
227961 through 228168.  (An itemized list of disbursements is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

 
Supervisor Dawson made the motion to move Consent Agenda item 6-I 
Personnel Report, item number 2 only, to the regular agenda, which was 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin and unanimously approved.  Supervisor 
Dawson then made the motion to table Consent Agenda item 6-I of the 
Personnel Report, item number 2, to a later date and instruct administration to 
have it brought back to the Board by the County Manager.  The motion was 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin and unanimously approved.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved the remaining Consent Agenda items 6A-6J, with the 
exception of 6I (number 2), which was already tabled.   
 
Supervisor Dawson stated that agenda items 7 and 8 should be skipped at this 
time and that the Board should address agenda item 9 next, to which the 
Board agreed.   
 
Item 9 - Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Peace Officer 
Training Fund Grant Agreement (AZ POST Contract No. 2010-033) 
awarded to the Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $1,900 by the Arizona 
Peace Officer Standards and Training Board (POST).    
 
Sheriff John Armer stated that this is a request to approve a $1,900 grant from 
POST strictly to enhance the Sheriff’s Office fire arms simulator training piece 
of equipment.  There is no required County match of funds and the 
accompanying Agreement states how the funds are to be used.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 



13 

unanimously approved a Peace Officer Training Fund Grant Agreement (AZ 
POST Contract No. 2010-033) awarded to the Sheriff’s Office in the amount of 
$1,900 by the Arizona Peace Officer Standards and Training Board (POST). 
 
After addressing agenda item 9, Chairman Pastor returned to agenda items 7 
and 8.   
 
Item 7 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
Jess Bryant, a resident of Globe, gave an update to the Board on the upcoming 
events planned for the Independence Day celebration on the 4th of July.   
 
Item 8 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-31.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may 
present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on 
issues presented.   
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.  Don McDaniel, 
County Manager, had no comments at this time.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:20 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



    Item #:  5- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Report for the Month of September 2010

Submitted For: Kimberly Rust,

Constable Clerk

Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,

Constable - Globe

Information

Subject

Globe Constable Report for the month of September 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe Regional

Constable.

Attachments

Link: Globe Constable Report 09/10

































    Item #:  5- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Reporting Period: Recorder's Office Monthly Report for October 2010

Submitted For: Dawn Caldera, Chief

Deputy Recorder

Submitted By: Dawn Caldera,

Recorder's Office

Information

Subject

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for October 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments

Link: Recorder's October 2010 Monthly Report





















    Item #:  5- M     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 12/14/2010  

Reporting Period: Personnel Report for the weeks of 12/7/10 and 12/14/10

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero,

Personnel Director

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy

County Manager

Information

Subject

Personnel Report for the weeks of 12/7/10 and 12/14/10

Suggested Motion

Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 7, 2010, and December 14, 2010.

Attachments

Link: 12/07/10 Personnel Agenda

Link: 12/14/10 Personnel Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
DECEMBER 7, 2010 

REVISED 
 

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Jeremiah Johnson - Health and Emergency Services – Rural Addressing Analyst – 
11/23/10 – General Fund – DOH 08/13/07 - Resigned 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Larry Dooly – Building Maintenance Technician – Public Works Facilities 
Management – 12/06/10 – Facilities Management Fund – Replacing Brandon 
Trobaugh 

3. Nancy Mach - Health and Emergency Services – Part Time Community Health 
Assistant – 12/06/10 – FTF Early Childhood Screening Fund – Replacing Kasey 
Jankowski 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

4. Mary Kim Titla - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Job Corps Assistant  - 
11/29/10 – Constituent Services III Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Mark Warden – Public Works Facilities Management - From Building 
Maintenance Technician – To Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 
12/06/10 – Facilities Management Fund  

6. Deborah Bradway – Community Development – From Building Safety Assistant 
– To Environmental Engineering Technician – 12/27/10 - General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

7. Gary Lopez – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 11/22/10 – 
GEST Fund – Increasing hours from 30 to 40 

8. Mary Allen – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 
11/29/10 - General Fund – Increasing hours from 19 to 24 

9. Linda Shirley – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 
11/29/10 - General Fund – Decreasing hours from 24 to 19 

10. Paula Horn - Health and Emergency Services – From Health Programs 
Coordinator – To Deputy Director of Prevention Services – 11/22/10 – Various 
Funds 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

11. Health and Emergency Services – WIC Breastfeeding Counselor – New Position 
12. Community Services – Career and Employment Senior Specialist – Vacated by 

Michael Lopez 
 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
DECEMBER 7, 2010 
PAGE 2 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Amy Bagwell - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/22/10 - General Fund – 
DOH 10/14/08 – Resigned 

2. David North - Sheriff's Office – Executive Administrative Assistant – 11/24/10 – 
General – Passed Away  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
DECEMBER 14, 2010 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Michael Lopez – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 
12/03/10 – WIA Fund – DOH 09/14/09 – Resigned 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Gerardo Rojas – Probation – Detention Shift Supervisor – 12/20/10 – General 
Fund – Replacing Keith Dixon 

3. Jennifer Caster – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 12/20/10 – Juvenile 
Intensive Probation Fund – Replacing Sandra Bowling 

4. Jeremy Thurman – Finance – Accountant – 12/08/10 – General Fund – Replacing 
Lucille Koury 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Amanda Roady – From Community Services – To Finance – From Accountant – 
To Accountant Senior – 12/07/10 - General Fund – Replacing Sylvia Martinez 

6. Jami Anderson – Health and Emergency Services – From Community Health 
Assistant – To WIC Breast Feeding Peer Counselor Supervisor – 12/06/10 – WIC 
and CSFP Funds – New position 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

7. Denise Dickison – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 12/06/10 – 
Change in fund codes 

8. Roxanne Dennhardt – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 12/06/10 –  
Change in fund codes  

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

9. Carl McCoy – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/20/10 – General Fund – 
New Women’s Dorm Position 

10. Dawn Dzera – Sheriff’s Office – Part-Time Detention Officer – 02/20/11 – 
Commissary Fund – Replacing Hazel Young 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Senator Sylvia Allen Visit to Gila County
	Item2.B.  November Spotlight on Employees
	Item3.A.  Variance Request to the Gila County Floodplain Ordinance for Parcel No. 201-14-018C
	Item3.A._Att1_Exhibit A-Variance Request by Roy & Rose Goodwin
	Goodwin%20Variance%20Request[1]
	Goodwin%20Variance%20Request%202[1]

	Item3.A._Att2_Exhibit B-Site Information
	Item3.A._Att3_Exhibit C-Excerpts From Gila County Floodpain Management Ordinance
	Item4.A.  Proclamation No. 10-12 Proclaiming December 2010 as Drunk and Drugged Driving (3D) Prevention Month 
	Item4.A._Att1_Proclamation 10-12
	Item4.B.  Board of Supervisors' 2010 Annual Property Tax Sale_Auction
	Item4.B._Att01_2010 BOS Property Tax Sale_Auction List
	Item4.B._Att02_Parcel No. 101-07-057 Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att03_Parcel No. 101-07-175 Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att04_Parcel No. 101-07-227 Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att05_Parcel No. 101-10-030-A Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att06_Parcel No. 102-26-001-B Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att07_Parcel No. 201-08-054-B Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att08_Parcel No. 207-15-506 Map & Photos
	Item4.B._Att09_Parcel No. 304-01-362-H Map & Photo
	Item4.B._Att10_Parcel No. 304-01-362-J Map & Photo
	Item4.B._Att11_Parcel No. 304-10-022-D Map & Photo
	Item4.C.  Contract Award for Annual Newspaper Advertising
	Item4.C._Att1_Call for Bids No. 111510-1
	Item4.C._Att2_Public Notice for Call for Bids NO. 111510-1
	Item4.C._Att3_Certified Letters re Call for Bids No. 111510-1
	Item4.C._Att4_Bid Sheet
	Item4.C._Att5_Arizona Silver Belt Bid 12-06-10
	Item4.C._Att6_Acceptance of Offer--Arizona Silver Belt 
	ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER
	GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:
	Awarded this         14th       day of               December          , 2010.
	Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board
	ATTEST:
	Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney

	Item4.D.  Resolution No.10-11-01 Establishing Guidelines for the Selection of the Gila County Redistricting Committee
	Item4.D._Att1_Resolution 10-11-01
	Item4.D._Att2_Redistricting Committee Selection Guidelines
	Item4.D._Att3_AZ Constitution Article 4
	Item4.D._Att4_ARS 11-212
	Item4.D._Att5_ARS 11-251 (2)
	Item4.E.  Certification of  Proposition No. 112 Recount Results from the General Election
	Item4.E._Att1_ARS Recount Statutes
	Item4.E._Att2_Ltr to SOS - Certification of Recount Results
	Item4.F.  Tonto Creek Bridge Professional Consulting Services Contract 6511.526_10-2010 with C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc.
	Item4.F._Att1_Executive Summary Form For Professional Services
	Item4.F._Att2_Professional Consulting Services Contract with C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc.
	Item4.G.  New grant application for Local Transportation Assistance Funds (LTAF II) SFY 2011
	Item4.G._Att1_Resolution and app
	Item4.H.  Vehicle transfer from the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Miami Police Dept. (2004 Dodge Intrepid Vin _283HD46V54H702769)
	Item4.H._Att1_Letter Regarding Vehicle Transfer to Miami PD
	Item4.I.  Interlock Agreement with the Town of Payson for 2010 Bryne Justice Assistance Grant Award
	Item4.I._Att1_Interlock Agreement with Town of Payson for Bryne Grant Award
	Item4.J.  Contract Award Bid No. 080310-1 General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support
	Item4.J._Att1_Bid Tab No. 080310-1
	Item4.J._Att2_Bid 080310-1
	Item4.J._Att3_System Agreement
	Item4.K.  Professional Service Agreement No. 1005.203_12-2010 Treasurer's Warrant Conversion with Robert Heming
	Item4.K._Att1_Executive Summary
	Item4.K._Att2_Professional Services Agreement No. 1005.203_12-2010  with Robert Heming
	Tommie C. Martin, District I

	Item4.L.  Amendment to Gila County Attorney's Office Workflow Automation & System Integration Contract No. 3528-301-102007 with the Ashley Brandon Company
	Item4.L._Att1_Original Contract
	Item4.L._Att2_TABC Amendment
	Item5.A.  SubGrantee Agreement No.10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01 with Arizona Department of Homeland Security
	Item5.A._Att1_SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01 for ALPR Program
	Item5.B.  SubGrantee Agreement No.10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-02 for $28,000 with Arizona Department of Homeland Security
	Item5.B._Att1_SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-02
	Item5.C.  Amendment No.1 to Independent Contractor Agreement No. ACAA07012010 with Arizona Community Action Association
	Item5.C._Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ACAA07012010
	Item5.C._Att2_Contract No. ACAA07012010
	Item5.D.  Amendment No. 2 to Memorandum of Understanding_Contract for Help America Vote Act
	Item5.D._Att1_Amendment No. 2 to HAVA MOU
	Item5.D._Att2_Original HAVA Agreement & Amendment No. 1
	Item5.E.  Reappointment of Commissioners to the Planning and Zoning Commission
	Item5.F.  Reappointment of member to the Highway 60-70 Regional Design Review Board
	Item5.G.  Reappointments to the Gila County Board of Adjustment 
	Item5.H.  Appointment of representative to the Central Arizona Association of Governments Region V Council of Governments.
	Item5.I.  East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board Vacancy Appointments
	Item5.I._Att1_ARS 48-803
	Item5.I._Att2_East Verde Park Fire Board 10-11-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.J.  BOS Meeting Minutes for June 22, 2010
	Item5.J._Att1_BOS 06-22-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.K.  Globe Regional Constable Report for the Month of September 2010
	Item5.K._Att1_Globe Constable Report 09_10
	Item5.L.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for October 2010
	Item5.L._Att1_Recorder's October 2010 Monthly Report
	Item5.M.  Personnel Report for the weeks of 12_7_10 and 12_14_10
	Item5.M._Att1_12_07_10 Personnel Agenda
	Item5.M._Att2_12_14_10 Personnel Agenda



